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The economic environment f[ij 021 was well poised

for recovery. The banki ng industry leveraged on
opportunities towards reinvigorating the recovery by
supporting enterprises and households affected by
COVID-19. The year iﬁu presents opportunities {o
explore further strategies towards deepe ning financial
inclusion andkoptimizing the ban king industry’s

contribution to the economy.
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ABOUT KENYA
BANKERS
ASSOCIATION

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Kenya Bankers Association (KBA) was registered as an
industry Association on 16™ july 1962 by the Registrar al
Trade Unions. In its formative years, the main aim of the
Association was 1o cater for the interests of the member
banks in negatiating terms and conditions of service of its
unionisable employees and as far as possible standardize
management practhces so as o ensure harmaony in the

fnchusiry.

Cver time, the ambition of the Association evolved o
include promating industry development and economic
growth by engaging the government and the primary
sector regulator, Central Bank of Kemya (CBKL This KBA
ambitlon was reinforced in 2012 when the Association
launched its new brand and ambition staterment: Cioe

tnclustry. Transforming Kenya.

KBA Core Values

Ta reinforce the banking industry's ability to be a primary
driver of the econamy's development aspiration, the
mandate of the Association was redefined and enshrined
in the KBA 2014-2018 Strategic Plan, The core focus
was broadened 1o include lobbying and advocacy, and
championing indusiry development and innavation

by coordinating the members and parinering with
stakeholders on strategic initiatives. To support the
Association’s new mandate, KBAs values, vision and
milsshon were further redefined in the Association’s 20019-

2023 Strategic Plan.

As the umbrella body of the institutions licensed and
regulated by CBK with a current membership of 44
financial institutions representing total assets in excess
of KSh, & Trillion, KBA continues io reinforce a reputable
and professional banking sector in a bid to best suppont
Keryans, who enirust their ambitions and hard earmned
resources with its member banks.

Leadership, Innovation, Knowledge and Ethics.

KBA Vision

A vibrant and responsive banking industry.
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KBA Mission

To promote a competitive banking
environment by championing industry
development through thought leadership,
research, innovation and advocacy.

KBA Structure & Governance 1. Operations & Technical Services Committes
- Clearing House Sub Commitiee

KBA is an assoclation of the 44 member banks and - Nalional Payments Sub Committee

Secretariat that i situated at International House in - Credit & Islamic Finance Advisory Sub

Mairobi. The banks constitute the Gemeral Body and Commilien

are represented by their Managing Directors or Chief

Executive Officers. The KBA General Body elects a 2. Bonk Fraud & Risk Committee

Cioverning Council that is comprised of a minimum - Bank Security Sub Committee

of 12 CEDs who represent the members and oversee - Bank Forencics Suli Comimities

the Secretariat’s operations, programs and budget, Mr. - Bank IT Systems, Risk & Security Sub Committee

John Gachora, Group MD, NCBA Bank, is the current

Chairman of the KBA Governing Council, 3. Legal Affairs Committ

The KBA Secretariat has a full-time staff compliment of 18 & Finonce & Audit C e

employees who manage day 1o day operations under the - e Sl Chaanitten

leadership of Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Habil Olaka, - Financial Markets Sub Committee

KBA activities are managed by the Secretariat which worke 5. Compli Committ
in consultation with the following Committees and Sub

Commitiees: & Human Resources & Ethics Committes

7.  Public Relations Committes

Promoting industry development and
economic growth by engaging the
government and sector requlator, Central
Bank of Kenya (CBK).
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AT A GLANCE
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KBA Audience Reach
held in conjunction with the

association’s mandaie by KBA 1o facilitate policy

engagement and indusiry griavth
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Training and Capacity Building ﬁ;,:

" Forward-Looking Risk Managemént
AML / CFT Sanctions-Fincrime in the
= ‘Wake of COVICL-19 Pandemic - .

- Emerging Trends In AML/CFT Sanctions

INDUSTRY ADVOCACY

. AMLCFT Regulatory Framework
Technology & Data In AMLACFT
Data Privacy Ovganizational Strategy
Privacy Notice and Policy
Managemeni
" Data Lifecycle Management

Chata Subject Rights and F‘rm:mng
* Data Security

Data Privacy and Anti-Money
. Laundering

Key Policy Engagements
- “Sectional Properfies Act
- Mational Land Information Managemeni Syﬂem iArdisasa)
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-Kema Valuation Standards *
Collateral Reglstry

Industry Fraud And Cybercrime
Capital Gains Tax

National F'ayrm!nl Syslerm Act

Lands Act

‘Moveable Property Security Rights Act

Mational Policy and Diraft Bill an the Credit Guarantee Scheme

“Financing of Micro, Small and Medium:-sized Enterprises
Draft Protocol 1o the Convention
Ministry.of Lands Taskforce on Electronic Land Transactions .

KBA Representation on Boards, Committees and Taskforces

Regulatory @

-, Auctioneers Licensing Board .
ICPAK Taskforce on IFRS 9 Implementation

- Naul:nal FA.TEA Tasldurce

. Halh'.‘rl'lal Taskhte nnﬁnnh-hney L.'J.unl:bﬂng .md

Combating Financing of Terrorism (NTF)

Security

« AntiMoney Laundering Advisosy Bomrd .
« Central Bank / Communications Autharity
. Computer Incident Reporting Team (CIRT)
- KEPSA Security Sector Board

- Mational Counter-Terrarism Task Foce

B & 8 8 &

Industry Stability, Growth & Deyelopment g%jﬁ‘

Capital Markets Authority Master - Higher Education Loans Board - KEPSA Public Finance Sector

+ Plan Working Group  » « - International Chamber of - Board
Court Annexed Mediation Commeenee (ICC) - Kenya School of Monetary

. Accredjtation Commitheg . - ludiciary’s Business Court Users Studies Boargd

= Credit Information Sharing (CI5) Committes = Ministry of Lands Taskforce

y Kmy-nl!ﬂa:d : - Kenya Deposit Insurance - Hatmrull!tm‘-:hFurd
East Africa Bond I:':-:hangle (EABX) Corporation Board " . Mational Taskforce on
East African Community’s - KEPSA Gerdler Sector Board Commeadity Exchange

" Technical Working Group T - Kenya Private Sector Alliance - National Treasury Taskiorce on
Federation of Kenya Empiwers (KEPSA) Board thie SME Credit Guaraniee

- anj . - v . " " - sd-.m
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KBA MEMBERS

In addition 1o widening the Association's scope. KBA has over the years recorded a
commendable increass in membership. KBA proudly appreciates the keadership and
imvalviement that each of the members continue to lend io the Association.

KBA Members as at 31" December 2021

1. Absa Bank (K Plc 24. HFC Limited

2. ABC Bank Lid 25, 1&M Bank Lid

3.  Access Bank (K) Plc 26. KCB Bank (K) Ltd

4. Bank of Africa (K) Lid 17. Kenya Women Microfinance Bank Plc
5. Bank of Baroda (Ki Ltd 28. Kingdom Bank {K) Lid

6. Bankof India 29. Mayfair CI8 Bank Lid

7. Caritas Microfinance Bank Lud 30, Middle East Bank (K Lid

B, Citibank M.A Kemya 31, M Oriental Bank Lid

9. Consolidated Bank of (K] Lid 32. Mational Bank of (K Lid

10. Co-Diperative Bank of (K Lid 33, NCBA Bank (K) Plc

11. Credit Bank Lid 4. Paramount Bank Lid

12, Development Bank (K} Lid 35. Posthank

13. DTH Kenya Lid A6, Prime Bank Lid

14, DB Bank (K) Lnd 37. Raiki Microfmance Bank Lid
15, Ecobank (K) Led 38. SBM Bank (K) Lid

16. Equity Bank (K) Ltd 39. Sedian Bank Lid

17, Family Bank Ltd 40. Spire Bank Lid

18, Faulu Microfinance Bank Ltd 41. Stanhic Bank (K} Lrd

19. Cuaranty Trust Bank (K Led 42. Standard Chamered Bank (K] Lid
20, First Community Bank Lid 43. UBA (K) Bank Ltd

21, Guardian Bank Lod 44. Victoria Commercial Bank Lid

22, Guif African Bank Lid
23. Habib Bank AG. Purich



KBA GOVERNING COUNCIL

The KBA Governing Council is elected 1o represent three indusiry calegories - large, medium-
sized and small banks - as defined by the KBA Constitution,

Governing Council Members as at December 2021

Chairman Vice Chair

P\ ) i

John Goachora Rebecoa Mblthl Joshua Oigara D, Gideon Murkuki

MOBA Bank Family Bank ECH Bank Co-Operative Bank

Group Monoging Direotor Chigf Evecutaee Officer Cruef Ewereitive Offecer Graws Mavagng Directar
& LEd)

A

‘ -t h
Gerold Warui Masim Devji Kariuki Mgar| Jaremy Awarl
Equity Bank (K] Lid Diarmond Trust Bank Standand Chartored Bank Absa Bank
Lonaging Direotor Growp Momaging [unecnor I (NeRCIOY hiammzging Directoe

& CFQ

&l

Kihora Maina Martin Mugambd Moazz Mir Dlabaye Veracruz
| & &4 Bamk Cilibank N.A SEM Bank GT Bank
Ciwef Everulive Officer Monagiag Direcior & CEQ Chigf Executive Officer Maragng Diecror

d

Pater Makou lsoae Muige Johnson Kiniti
N8 Kema Bank Middle East Bank Development Bank of Kenyva

Civief Evecutve Oficer Movaging Direcior Ag Chief Frecutie Officer




KBA COMMITTEE
REPRESENTATIVES

Elirobeth Kimani Philip Wombuo
ABC Bank AR Hank
‘ Laban Gmangi Pater Mungai Brian Heleth
A W Absa Bank Absa Bank Citibank
Cotherine Mugane Rabley Mgoje
DTE Eenya - KCH Bank
Catharine Njoroge Edgar Mwandowins

. Stanbic Bank 5B Bank




COMPLIANCE Committes
cHam Absa Bank {Laban Omangi)
wich ciaag DIB Bank Hﬂﬂ‘pa |'D.u|p,.-
MNamayi)

SECAETARY Kenya Banl-cer: Association
(Kennedy Mutisyal

FINANCE AND AUDIT Committes
cham DOTB Kenya (Catherine Mugane) -
wict ik SEM Bank (Davis Avakod
seceeTany Kenya Bankers .‘i.:-'s-m:mtlun
(Kennedy Mutisya)

Financial Markets Sub Committee
cxam ABC Bank (Philip Wambua)
wice cHam Absa Bank (Anthony Kinu)
secretany Stanilard Chariered Bink
{Micholas Mutua)

Tax Sub Committeo

cham Alsa Bank (Peter Mungai)

wict caur Equity Bank fLydia
Mdirangu)

sacagtamy Kenya Banlers Asmlalm
{Kennedy Mutisya) ’

HUMAN RESOURCES AND ETHICS
Committes

cuam KCEB Bank (Robley Ngoje)

wice cham Sidian Bank (Wangaré
Cathu)

secmetay Kenya Bankes Associgtion
{Raimond Molenjel

- = - -

-
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IT SYSTEM RISKS & SECURITY
Committes

cxam SBM Bank {Edgar Mwandawiro)
wick cuum Equity Bank felevilin
Kimathi]

sscneTany KEA Sﬂuve.-tnnll tFlderI:
Muia)

Bank IT System Risks & Security
Sub Committee

cham KCB Bank (Kabuthia Riunge)
wice cham Co-Operativé Bank (Leah
Kimata)

secreray Family Bank (Anthamy
Chesara)

Bank Security Sub Committee
chuir GT Bank (Ben Shichenga)
wice cuam Equity Bank (Edward
Muchirl : :
seceeraay DB Kenya Bank (Hillary
ED{'HH:I H . i
sicaeramy Standard Chanered Bank
{Faith Lumumiba}

LEGAL AFFAIRS Committes

cuain MCBA Bank Kermyga (Steve |
Abenya)

wict cham HF Group Limited [Be!lnd.n
Ng'ahg'a) :

secrerany Kemya Bankers Association
iRaimond Maolenje)

OPERATIONS AND TECHMICAL
cunm ABC Bank (Elizabeth Kimani)
wice cuam Eqquity Bank (Miring'u
Ng'anga) ' '
secnerany KBA Secretarial (Fidelis
i

-

®

- ®

Clearing House Sub Committee
char Citibank (Brian Koletit)

vick cHam NCBA Bank (Michael
Muchery) % § %
seceemamy Prime Bank (Sabina Manji)

Advisery Committee

chmrAbsa Bank [Christine Mwai-
Parandu)

wict cHam ABC Bank (Boniface Kioks)
secestamy Kenya Bankers Association
(Samued Tiriongo)

Hational Payments Sub Committes
cHailm Co-Operative Bank [.h.-'lqdu-_-l
MNangiole) 2 " *
vice cHam [DIB Bank Kenya (Doreen
Muletar

SECRETARY H.m;ra E.ml:m Ass-:rcuatlnn
#Frdielrs Muia)

PUBLIC RELATIONS Committes
cham Stanbic Bank (Catherine
H||:n:|gt" )
wice cham ARC Bank (Wambui
Kaguongol - . .
secRETARY Kenya Bankers Association
(Christine Onyangn)

- 8



MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Dr. Habil Olaka, ess

Chief Executive Dificer

Dr. Olaka was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of the Kemya Bankers
Association (KBA] in October 2000
He is responsible for the strategic
direction of the Association, covering
inclusiry advocacy, development and
sustainability. Prevviously he was the
Director of Operations of the Eas
Alrican Development Bank (EADE)
based in Kampala after serving as the
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Resident Manager in Kenva. He earlier
servil the bank as the Head of Risk
Management and as the Chief Internal
Audilor,

He is a member of the International
Adbvisary Committee of the Chartered
Banking Instilute in the LIK,

Before joining the Bank, he had

been with Bangque Indosuez (now
Bank of Africa) as the Inernal

Auditer, He started his career at the
PricewaterhouseCoopdrs, Mairohi

in the Audit and Business Advisory
Senvices Dhivision. He sits on a number
of boards representing the KBA,

These are Kemya Deposil Insurance
Corporation (KDIC), Higher Education
Loans Board (HELB), Federation

of Kenya Employers (FKE), and the
Anti-Money Laundering Advisory
Board (AMLARB) as aliernate 1o KBA
Chairman. He is the National President

Kennedy Mutisya
Chief Finance Officer

of the Federation of Kenya Employers
and the Chairman of the board of the
Cenire for Corparate Covernance
(CCGH He also sits on the board of the
Mational Housing Corporation {(MHC),

He holds a Doclior of Business
Administration from USIU-Adrica,

a First-Class Honours BSc degree

in Electrical Engineering from the
Uiniversity of Nairobl, and an MBA in
Finance from the Manchester Business
School inthe LK. His DEA disseation
wils on the influence of strategic
leadership on the implamentaton of

strategy in the commencial banks in

Kiznya.

He is a member of the Institute of the
Certified Public Accountants of Kenya
(HCPAK)L. He s an alumnus of the
Strathmoee School of Accountancy and
has a good command of the French

language

Mr, Mutisya was appoinied to the position of Chief Finance Officer in Decembeer 2072
He is a seasoned professional with 20 years of experience rodating through multiple
roles within the finance function in East Africa company controlling, project finance,
treasury, financial planning and analysis, In his career he has worked in various
industries, including banking, telecommunication, fast-moving consumes poods (FMCG)

and insurance. He has held various positions, most recently Finance Manager at the
Monarch Group of companies. He earned a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Business Studies from Kenyatta
LIntversity, and is a member of the nstiue of Cenified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK),
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Fidelis Muia

Director of Technical Services

hdr. Muia is the Director of Technical Services, Kenya Bankers Association. He s
responsibile for the co-ordination of industry Infiatives peared towards enhancing
technology and aperations for the banking industry. He has been Instrumental in
implementing, projects that resulted in the modemization of the National Payment
systems, having been imvolved in the development of the first two Central Bank of

Kemya's National Payment Systems Swategies, and the formulation and deafting of The
Malional Payments Systems Act 2012 and its regulations.

In his role at the Association, Mr. Muia led in the modemisation of the Banking
Payment Systems from the Automated Clearing House implementation and the Cheque
Truncation System, migration of Kemya's Payment Cards system 1o the EMY standard and
the development of the Credit Information Sharing Mechanism in Kenya (CRBs).

M, Musia has represented the Banking industry in 8 numbes national inftiathees like the
Kenya Credit Guaraniee Scheme development with the National Economic and Social
Council {NESC), the formation of the Payments Association of Kenya among many other

Giovernment task forces and commitiees.

i, Muia has a wide range of knowledge in systemt development and implementation,
having warked in bath the insurance and banking industries for more than 25 years.

Christine Onyango

Drector of Communications and Public Affairs

Mg, Dnyango joined the Association in February 2022 from 1&M Bank, where she served
i the Head of Marketing for 10 years. She has a cumulative 19 years’ experience within
the hanking industry, having worked for a Fortune 500 company and one of the largest
banks in the US (Bank of Americal, Credit Bank Limited and Gull African Bank. Christine
s a recognized leader in maters marketing, conporate communication and business
strategy delivering results through effective marketing campaigns, brand and relationship
managament. She is a holder of bachelors degree in Business Administration &
tanagement from Amberton University, Dallas, TX and Associate degroe in Business
Administration & Management from Colin County Community College, Plano, TX.




Raimond Molenje
Director Legal, Human Resource and Policy Advocacy

#ir. Raimond Molenje joined Kemyva Bankers Association in August 2008 and has o
17 years’ expesrience in legal practice, human capital, and stakeholder engagement with
special interest in business member organisations. He has beld management rodes as
corporate legal counsel, human resource and industrial relations specialist with leading
arganizations and corparations including HR Advisor at De La Rue Currency and
Security Print, Legal Manager at Federation of Kenya Employers (FKE] and HR Manager-
Emplovee Relations ai Equity Bank Group.

Malenje spearheads the effective and efficient management of legislative, reguiatory and
policy advocacy malters impacting the industry, continues to successfully coordinate the
collective bargaining agreement negotiations with the Banking Insurance and Finance
Linion (BIFLY) Kenya; involved in the Association's loblwying and policy initlatives wilh
diverse stakeholders and provides Company Secretarial and human capital suppor o
the KBA Secretarial.

He is passionate about raining and capacity building and serves as a Lecturer at the
College of Human Resources Management. He is also a Boand Member with the
Auctionesers and Licensing Board under the Attormey General’s Orffice as wel| as the
Mediation Accreditation Committes of the Judiciary representing the industry.

Molenje is an Advocate of the High Coun of Kemya, Commissioner for Oaths and Motary
Public. He is a practicing member with both the Law Soclety of Kenya (L5K) and the
Institute of Human Resource Management (IHRM) and hobds a Bachelor of Lavs (LL.B)
degree from the University of Mairobi, and Posigraduate Diplomas in Law from the
Kenya School of Law; and International Human Resource Managemeni from Cambridsge
International College, LUK,

Dr. Samuel Tiriongo
Director of Research and Palicy

0. Samuel Tirianga (PRD) joined Kenya Bankers Association (KBA) in Decembser 2020,
He previously served as an economist with the Central Bank of Kenya for 13 years, of
which he was attached to the Secretariat of the Monetary Policy Commitbes (MPC) for 11
years, providing research and analysis targeted ai informing monetary policy decisions
of the Committee. Additionally, he has been involved in various research assignmends
that have shaped industry discourse and policymaking, having published widely in

preer reviewed research outlets on market microsiruciung, eoonomic respanses (o crises,
monetary policy communication, and credit market analyses, among other areas.

Dir. Tiriongo holds a PhD in Economics of the Liniversity of Dar es Salaam -Tanzania, confered under the Collaborative

PhD Programme in Ecomomics for Sub-Sahamn Africa of the African Econaormic Research Consortium (AERC), He has

been a research fellow of the AERC since 2016 and was awarded in 2007 1o parficipate in the AERCAMF Visiting Scholars
Programme. He has also recenved professional training from several leading organizations, key among them are International
Monetary Fund (IMF), The World Bank, and fMacroeconomic and Financial Management Institute of Eastern and Southemn

Alrica (MEFMIL
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

12 May 2022
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF KBA MEMBER BANKS

Drear Sirsd Mesdames,

NOTICE OF THE 60™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF KENYA BANKERS ASSOCIATION
TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY 23" JUNE 2022 FROM 2:30PM AT SERENA HOTEL, NAIROBI

Nolice is hereby given that the 60™ Annual General Meeting of Kenya Bankers Association will be held
on Thursday 23" june 2022 at the Serena Hotel, Nairobi.

AGENDA
- Constitution of the Meeting and adoption of the Agenda.
2. Confirmation of minutes of the 59* Annual General Meeting held on 24* june 2021 and
confirmation of the minutes of the 242™ General Body Meeting of 24® March 2022,
3. Matters arising from the minutes of the 59 Annual General Meeting and 242 Ceneral Body
meeting.
4. Adoption of the Chairman’s Report,
. Imegrated Payment Services Limited (IPSL) Update.
6. Consideration of the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31* December
2021,
Declaration of results of the elected Members to the KBA Governing Council.
Any Oither Business,

Yours Faithfully,

A

Dr. Habil Olaka, ess
Chief Executive Officer
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CHAIRMAN'S
MESSAGE

The banking industry enhanced
efforts towards supporting
economic recovery in 2021; the
year 2022 presents opportunities
to deepen Anancial inclusion
through responsive lending models
and capacity building initiatives.

In many ways, 2021 marked the beginning of a possible
“new normal” following the lifting of COVID-19
containment measures imposed at the onset of the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. This was made possible
following successful mass vaccinations, driven by well
executed government and private sector efforts. | am
glad to say that KBA members stood with the community
and contributed significantly towards the availability of
COVID-12 vaccines for their employess, their families
and, indeed, the community.

Uinlike the previous year, 2021 experionced significant
economic growth on account of the easing of COVID-19

containment measures, The re-opening of the economy
offered much-needed relief across sectors, providing
additional momentum to a fledgling pos-COVID

recavery. However, the recovery continued to be fragile,
necessitating sustained efforts towards building back betier
while enduring inclusive recovery.

In this regard, | would like to commend the banking
sector for its efforts towards anchoring the economy; and
continuing to support bank customens through credit
accommodations and extending financing while also
managing attendant credil risks. It is commendable (hat
the industry collectively restructured loans worth KSh, 1.7
trillion between March 2020 and February 2021 towards
supporting customers navigate through the pandemic,

The banking sector’s asset quality continued 1o improve
with the NPL ratio to gross loans declining to 13.1 percent
in December 2021, from 14.5 percent in December 2020,
The banking industry also contined o be sufficiently
liguid and adequately capitalised, demonstrating its
resilience and continued ability to suppon private sector
recovery. Banking sector liquidity closed the vear ar 56,2
percent in December 2021, compared to 545 percent

in December 2020 and 49.7 percent in December 20149,
This impressive resilience was spurred by innovation in
bath the arena of lending products and adaptive customer
service solutions,

The resilience of the banking sector has been supported
by a conduchve policy and regulatory environment, and
on behalf of the banking industry, | acknowledge with
gratitide the imporant role the regulator — Central Bank
of Kenya — continued to play in coming up with targeted
interventions aimed at supporting affected sectors (o
weather the pandemic. | have no doubt that continued
cross-sector collaboration will remain a kev element as we
gear up for the year 2022, As an Industry, we commit our
readiness and willingness to work with all stakeholders in
efforts towards full economic recovery,

ENPANDING INCLUSION FRONTIERS

Chver the years, the banking sector has been commitied to
achieving an inclusive financial system through various
hank-level interventions and indusiry collaborations. In
2021, the industry continued 1o ramp up efforts lowards
supporting inclusion for Persons with Disabilities in line
with the aspirations of the industry’s Strategic Plan for
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the pericd 2019 to 2023, Under the Plan, the industry
eollectively seeks to suppert financlal inclusion for
vulnerable groups, including te yauth, wamen and
Persons with Disahilities. | am happy 1o note that the
indlustry has nat reneged on this importani commitment
and continues to implement inltiatives peared lowards
ensuring products and services resonate with the needs of
Persons with Disabilities.

The unveiling of the Deal Elimu Banking Kenyan Sign
Language (KSL) self-training tool — a solution that

secks to support bank staif (o learn KSL and serve Deaf
customers better— was a key highlight in 2021, The App
rulminated from the varfous recommendations contained
in KBA's Banking Industry Accessibility Report and Case
Stuscly, published in 2020. The report highlighted the need
s facilitate a better banking experience for the Deaf
community and Persons with Disabilities in general. In

its findings, the report indicaies that Deaf cusiomers are
some of the most dissatisfied bank clients on account af
communication challenges, To address this challenge,

the stuchy recommends indusirpwide measunes towards
ensuring bank branches have stafl whio can communécate

in Kenvan Sign Language,

With regard to supporting industry-wide implementation
of accessibility initiatives, | am happy to note that the
KBA Secretariat has developed an industry roadmap

1o guiche the industry’s inclusion ambitions in a phased
approach. It will be instructive for KBA member banks to
continue champloning the inclusion measures to facilitate
full accessibility to banking services by the year 2024 or
SO,

SUPPORTING SME RESILIENCE

The pandemic has had an adverse impact on SMES

not only globally but also at the domestic level. The
recovery process highlights the need to support enterprise
development for a sustainable and inclusive economic
recovery, Collectively, 5MEs make a direct contribution of
about 30 percent of the (otal valuee added in the economy.
Recognising the catalytic role of MSMEs in the economy,
the industry continued to explore additional opportunities
iy support their recovery in the year 2001, Key among
these interventions was the inuka Enterprise Program,
which seeks to enhance the credibworthiness of small
businesses through capacity building. It is encouraging

that the program reached more than 40,000 enterprises in
2021, with plans to scale even further. Since inception in
2018, the program has trained over 50,000 MSMEs, KBA
will continue fo work closely with the CBK on risk-based
pricing as an important cog in promoting credit access for
enterprises,

| have no doubt that in 2022, the industry will continue to
engage stakeholders 1o leverage on opportunities such as
the Credit Guarantes Scheme and the Moveable Property
Security Registry to facilitate further access to capital for
enterprises. These efforts are informed by the fact that
small businesses are the engine of the sconomy.

HICHLICHTING INDUSTRY SHARED VALUE

In 20021, the KBA Secretariat released various publications
to support e indusiry's lobbying and policy advocacy
efforts. They included the Tax Contribution of the Kenya
Banking Sector Report, which highlighted the significant
contribsution the industry makes towards Kenya's tax
revenue. The banking sector contributed 27 percent of all
taxes collected in Kenya in 2020 and 2013, despite the
adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition,
KBA published the State of the Banking Industry (SB1)
Repart 2021, which reaffirmed the industry's stability
despite the effects of the pandemic. The Association's
Mlcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Survey Report 20217
indicated that 90 percent of SMEs under KBA's Inuka
Enterprise Program were registered, signalling a high level
of formalization. | encourage member banks 1o conlinue
supporting KBA's research efforts, given the importance

of research in spurring further industry-wide growih and
supponting adhocacy initiatihves.

DUTLOOK

The banking industry has resiliently navigated challenges
in the business environment over the past bwvo years,
Underpinning this success has been the industry’s
characteristic responsiveness and innovation. These
elements will remain important as we transition o th
year 2022. Indeed, innovation will continue to play a
key role in facilitating access to affordable credit through
enhanced operational efficiency and satisfactory customer
experience; while adaptiveness will support the industry
to align to the dynamic needs of our customers. In efforts
towards deepening access to credit, banks will also find
data useful in designing products aligned with the ever-
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evolving needs of customers. In addition, strategies on
ways of addressing climate-related risks will remain at the
centre of the industry’s discourse in the next year with the
growing clamaour for greener lending. The Indusiry will,
therefore, find it necessary 1o invest in capacity building
programs aligned to these emerging needs,

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the KBA Governing Council, bet me thank
all our members for once again providing leadership and
expanding the boundaries of possibilities in the past year.
This Annual Report’s theme is New Frontiers, emphasising
our collective commitment 1o continue creating value for
the economy. The year 2022 presents a great apporiunity
to deepen financial inclusion and hamess technology

1o serve our customers even better, | have no doubt that
the industry stands ready to create adaptive solutions

to emerging challenges in collaboration with all our
stakeholders.

In closing, | would also like 10 extend my appreciation

to the KBA Governing Council Vice-Chair, Ms. Rebecca
Mbithi_ It has been my digtingt honour to serve the
indhustry alongside Ms, Mbithi, whose ideas have
continued 1o inform solutions to industry challenges over
the last year. On the same note, | thank all members of
the KBA Governing Council for their willingness and
readiness to provide counsel on industry matters across
the year. Similarly, | thank our member bank CEOs far
continuing 1o support KBA'S initiatives. The deep spirit

KBA Char o Gexthora held o mesting with Cobwer Secresory for T,
inmnovonon and’ fouth Affors joe Mocheny eod SME Advwior i the Presiciand
A Muleh! to deciss wand of supporTing Srowd’ and dereiogment of
FeTul Kenjpmn sreronses

of collaboration we have wiltnessed in 2021 signals the
industry’s commitment o achieve mose for the economy
in 2022,

Finally, allow me to appreciate the KBA team led by Dr.
Habil Olaka for continuing to develop and roll out various
transformative initiatives on behalf of the industry. Through
the Secretariat, the industry continues to progressively
engage with stakeholders such as the Central Bank

of Kenya, the National Treasury, the Kenya Revenue
Autharity, the Capital Markets Authority, the Retirement
Benedits Authority, among others. These engagements
continue to play a phvotal role in creating solutions 1o
industry challenges in a participatory manner.

As we transition to 2022, | remain confidend that the
banking sector will continue 1o leverage on opponunities
ti support growth and enhance its contribution 1o the
national development agenda,

John Gachora, mas
Chairperson
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CED™S
MESSAGE

Dr. Habil Olaka, ess
Chied Executive Officer

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2021

Industry operations in this year 2021
were undertaken on the backdrop
of challenges associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic. Although

the effects of the disruption abated
significantly in 2021, access (o
credit in small enterprises remained
constrained, demanding innovative
lending solutions. In this regard, the
Association enhanced its lobbymg
and advacacy activities, working
together with a widie range of
stakeholders to suppor business
recovery in the economy

For the KBA Group to underlake

and fund its program activities as
budpeted, the Group generates
income from varous sounces
comprising of subscription (ees,
switch income, entrance fees and
from other incame sources. During
the financial year 2021, total income
generated by the KBA group was KSh.
422,06 millian in comparison 1o KSh.
411.41 million generated in the FY
2020, The increase in total income
represents a 259 percent increase
from the previous year, The improved
incarme 4 atributed o increase in
switch income earmed by IPSL a5
more bank customers adopled and
use] the Pesalink platform

The Association has made marked
progress o broaden its income
sireams by introducing new services
that have generated additional
income. The subsidiary, IPSL, has

equally made steady growth in
increasing the transaction base for

the users of the Pewalink platiorm. In
the period under review, |PSLUs focus
was directed towards expanding its
income sream base from over relying
on P2P income stream o other
income streams such a8 aggregaior
fees and bulk trapsaction fees.

As a result of adopting this strategy,
the iotal incame for the year for IPSL
posted an inchease of 3221 percont,
closing at K5h. 42,53 million in
pomparison to Ksh, 32,17 millian
parmed in the previous year. The
usage of the Pesalink platiorm has
witnessed a significant increase by
bank customers and we expect this
trend to be sustained in the coming
YErs a5 vanous intaties aimed

to make the company profitable

are implemented by IPSL Board of
Directors and the Management.

KBA group expenditure allecation

for the year was mainly distributed

b0 func:
Administrative expenditure, Ksh.
313.24 million.

= Project related activities, KSh.
144.71 million,

- Establishment expenditure, Ksh.
127.77 million.

- Finance costs, KSh, -1.16 million

It is impartant to note that despite
the level of activities in the year
relatively increased compared to the
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PrEVIOLS vear due in reduced COVID. 19 restrictions, g
cost rationalization of 5 PECent was realizead compared
to FY 2020, The cost reduction js largely attributed 1o
expenditure reduction jn finance cos) Amounting to Ksh,
311 million after the Bank of Baroda logn was liquidated,

Revenue Distribution FY 2021

-

Policy Engagements
EEIZ ] In EABCUEing its mandate a5 the indlistrys advocacy group,
® Subscriptions 729, KBA continued 1o “Ngage policy makers on issyes that
@ Other Income 159, have a bearing on the industry. Supparted by various
@ Switch Income 10% Committmes, Syl Commitiees and Warking Groups,

Enfrance Fee oy, the KBA Secretariat engaged on a wide range of palicy
aspects, in efforts geared towards unlocking policy
challenges through facilitatory measyres,

2020 brought forward, To thi end, the National Treasury called
= Subseriptions Bor, for public submissions in FEspect o preparation of the
® Other Income 1z, next financial years budget. The Assnciation, through the
@ Switch Income  7a; Tax Sub Committee, submitted the banking sectors tax
Entrance Fep 3%, Proposals in August 2021 for consideration,
Following the Minisiry of Lands’ discontinuation of
Consolidated manual land transactions at the Nairghy Land Registry, the
Expl:lldlllll"! __2on 2020 MNational Lang Information Management Systerm (Ardhi.

. Amount Amouni $352) was launched on 27+ April 2021, The electronic
E_’PL'“H“":_ _— i, ., R system presented various challeugﬁ. to the indiutsry,
Project Related Consequently, KBA and the | aw Society of Kenya (L5K)
Ii"lwfm—we— — ]‘d—diﬂﬁ‘—aﬁ Hﬂ'z—ﬁfi held virigus sessions with banks 1o address the yeer
Administrative Expenses —— F A2 465 33,116,004 eXpenence concerns, The Assnciation alss engaged on
Eg.;!:ghﬁ_n_w_ﬁ Expenses — 127765952 133,244,810 the Sectional Properties Act, which came inlo force on
j-;_,-,;_.nre Expemm__ N ?1. FE]_?D‘-JII__EP,{FE.JE- 28" December 2020, The legislation provided for the
——_I'E_EJ; =i “_5'_51;”_ EIIEE,;; division of buildings into units 1o be owned by individual
et e I e proprietors and comman Propery to be owned by

~Expnditure of KBA and ipg) Proprietors of the unis
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pitiations for
ded enhanced 1enmms an
employees s ith

conchude union NeR
The Agreement prov?
covering ovef 20,000

industry. Under the agrt-,ernenl,. thiz um
received a four percent galary increment fo
]Emcﬂt p:_v:.r r

year 2020 and a further three
2021. The gnhanced terms and conditians of
unionisable staff .—J.mmnsdra.wd
to efficient and glfective seavic
public amidst the coviD-19 panchemic
played an important role as essential worker
the COVID-19 p.md.:mic. continuing o dejhw.r
uninterrupted services 10 the banking public-

un jonisabie

& delivery 1O the ba riking

COvID-19 vaccination Drive

The Association 17 partnership with the
pSA) and the Ministry of Health

sector Alliance (KE el
coordinated e vaccination of over 50,000 jndividuals
including banking inclustry staff, their family members

Kenya Private

e riondo
e i WRCETON aof ceme T2 5. 200 people

guidc‘r W a | e,

cxrvalism

work with 15K
starvdards.

ionisable erriployees
¢ this provious

jse for the year
work for the

ihe Industry s O FTIFTHRTHEnE

Bank employees
rkers thro uighout

KR4 povticipared i ife Mediation A
e | fri Atcradilaticyry o At
FECTIAR MATEROS [0 SEr Lnger e L MMHE“"T?:;E:;W“W::

arl the gulbdic with the single jab, Johnson and Jahnson
COMID-19 vaccine. This initiative enabled banks 1o full
resumne their operations and bétter supported the I::unnki:
public and businesses o mitigate the eifecs of L’D"u'lD-lIz
pandemic, .

Capacity Building

The Association sustained capacity building initiatives in
2021 as part of efforts towards promoling industry best
practices and bullding knowledge on ways of creatin
long-term value. Under the Sustainablo Finance I-mlijws_'
(SF1), KBA spearheaded enhanced wilization of the
training platform. Three new projects wene added fmto the
program: Environmental Risk; Blended Finance and the
Persons with Disability Project, These projects reinforced
thar 5F1 principles under the pri nciples an Managi .
and Mitigating Environmental Risk [5FI Principle ﬁalm
Circnwth Theough Inclusivity and Innovation (5F1 f
Principle 2).

In partnership with the Business Regisiration Service
(BRS), KBA also held sesshons for practical training of stalf
drﬂl.?.'n from banks, miciofinance banks and SACCOs who
are mvolved in the day-to-day operations of the collateral
rrgi.ﬂ!y. Further, KBA partnered with the ]udiciar','.'l';ainin
Institute fo undertake tax iraining for commercial judges *
focused on the banking industry. Through the Compliance
Sub Committes, KBA comened a training session on
:::EHE:.I Z:T:;t:;.::[j The Pl'Crg.r.am aimed to sonsitize
on aspects, includ ng desipning
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and implementing data protection programs, The seesion
also sought to prepare banks 1o comply with the Data
Profection Act.

In collaboration with Moody's Analytics, KBA continued
to provide capacity bullding 1o coedit market practitioners
an issues of relevance to the industry. Under the program,
the Association hosted a webinar on Forward-Looking Risk
Measurement, with perspective on East African Banks.

The webinar was held in recognition of the fact that aver
the last decade, banks have made and continue to make
significant reviews of their risk management models,

given the evolution of the business environment with the
uncertainty created by the pandemic.

Under the Environmental Risk Project, PwC has
commenced analysis of enmvinonmental and sater
compliance risks that banks and clients in manufacturing
and real estate are exposed (0. KBA & working with
MCBA, 1&M, Kingdom Bank, Mational Bank, Middie East
Bank and M-Criental Bank on detailed insights and will
issue a surviy to all members for broader feedback. The
project has been endorsed by Kenyva Property Developers
Association (KPDAY, Kenya Association of Manufacturers
(KAd), and the Petrodewm Institute of East Africa (PIEA)
and through these onganizations, banks will benefit from
their client insights. The draft policy paper was circulated
toy the KBA Governing Council in October 2021 for
considerathon.

To enhance industry technical capacity in the compliance
ficid, the Association underiook several trainings for
banks. The sessions included a training on financial

KB4 conducted o madklerrn revii of i 20152027 Siralrgr Plan

crime facilitabed by Ernst Young. The training focussed

on AML / CFT sanctions and financial crime in the wake
of the COVID-19 pandemic; emerging trends in AML!
CFT sanctions; highlights on the AMLCFT regulatory
framinwark; and technology and data in the contest of
AMLICFT. The Association also coordinaied a training
forum on data privacy, which almed o enhance

capacity on implementation of data profection program;
understanding data privacy challenges in the banking
sector; data privacy organizational strategy; privacy notice
and policy management; data [ifecycle management;

data subject rights and processing data security; and data
privacy and anti-money laundering,.

In addition to the trainings, the Association held several
stakeholder engagements with regulators ag part of the
continuous relationship building. In the year under

review the Association engaged with the Ethics and Andi-
Corruption Commission (EACC), Unclaimed Financial
Assets Authority (LIFAA), Assel Recovery Agency, Financial
Reposting Centre and the Office of the Data Protection
Commissioner (ODPC)L

Enhancing Customer Experience

In conjunction with the KBA Customer Service Working
Coroup, KBA conducted the 2021 Customier Satisfaction
Survey. The survey obtained close to 30,000 responses,
distinguishing the survey as one with the highest feedback
rate since the inaugural edition that was published in
2018. The large sample ollered an opportunity to analyse
acress barners and customer experisnce issues thai need
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b be addressed across the industry. The survey findings
indicated that 78 percent of Persons with Disability
were ahle to independently access banking services,
challenging the industry to implement Rurthes measures
i enhance the customer experience of bank clients with
disahilities, We believe that insights irom the report will
continui to inform furthier policies lowards enhancing
financial inclusion for the country’s highly dynamic and
diverse banking public through fact-based innovation

Paymenis and Security
Taskforce Proposals

In 2021, a Payments and Security Taskforce was
constiluted 1o develop recommendations towards
improving the security aspects of the payment’s
infrastructure, The team discussed :uggn,-ﬂrtl warious
initiatives, including a recommendation fo Mobile
Metwork Operators (o implement a solution that wald
detect SIM change where the consumer has linked their
SiMi card number 1o their bank. Two operators have since
implemented the feature and ane conducting integration
tests. KBA continues to engage fo ensure all proposals
made by the taskloree are implemented and where
necessary engage the regulalor for suppont. Meanwhile,
the Assoclation has boen working on upgrades on the
Clearing House 1o transition the framework 1o the mew

1503 20022 standard. In this regard, KBA organised training

sssions for banks' technical clearing teams in readiness
for the upgrades’ s go-live in 2022,

KBA Financial Reporting Recognition

Far the 5% consecutive time, the Kenya Bankers
Association won the 2021 Financial Reporting (Fikel
Aweardls, a joint nitiative by the Insttule of Certified

Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK), the Capital Market
Authoriy (ChA) Kenya and the Maknobi Securitios
Exchange (NSE). The Association was recognised for
excellence in financial reporting in the IFRS for SMEs
Category. The award followed a rigorous evaluation
process on ghobally accepted principles. The guiding
principles upon which the recognition was based included
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), best
practices in governance and corparate citizenship as wel|
as other requirements that are specific o a particular
reporting organisation. We appreciate our member banks
and other stakeholders for relentlessly supporting industry
initiatives towards refnforcing a reputable and prodessional
banking sector.

Dr. Habil Claka,

Chief Executive CHficers
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REPORT ON THE INTEGRATED PAYMENTS
SERVICES LIMITED (PESALINK)

Pezalini Chisf Operating Oficey Sieury Dwoeye foGAI0Ies @ S0P s
prshpm b o 2001

Parhcpantl & e SChene ruEes e

IPSL will continue to drive strategic engagement through key
partnerships with aligned interests for mutual benefit in terms of
shared knowledae, experience, resources and increased opportunities
to serve our customers better and sustain growth

CGlobally, real-time payments (RTP} rails will continue to
be among the most critical innovations in the banking
industry. As counlries drive towards a real-time economy,
implementing and adopting an nclusive instant panyments
infrastructuse Iy all playvers within the ecosystiem will

be an essential success factor. The banking industry in
Kerya has nol been left out in this jourmney with the recent
modernization and transformation of Pesalink to enable
interoperability for various stakeholders, including banks,
telcos, fintechs, payment service providers and Savings
and Credit Cooperative Sociefies (SACTOsl— based on
the |atest global messaging standard, 150 20022,

Pesalink provides 24 x 7 x 305 payment sevyices for
the banking industry in Kemya. Currently, the ecosystem
comsists of at least 12 banks, several payment service
providers, SACCOs and a ielon. Pesalink continees o
provide a compelling proposition ta banks and non-
bank financial institutions, consumers, mesrchants and
businesses for real-time transies, within seconds, at a
competitive fee, enabling immediate value, with same-
day settlement capabilities. This has continued to be an

As payments systems operators around thi world ani

a1 various stages of designing and implementing or
considering building new real-time payments plationms
based an 150 20022 message formats, Pesalink has
become the firgt nalional real-lime payments system
operator in sub-Saharan Africa to launch a real-time
payment system based on this standard. According fo

a 2021 report by "ACI Worldwide {a soffware company
providing real-time pavment solutions), real-time
payments iransactions out of global electronic transactions
in 2020 was 9.8 percent, up from 7.6 percent im 2015

it is projected to rise o 17.4 percent by 2025. Similarly,
the World Bank has valued the global real-time payments
market size at USD 13,55 billion in 2021 and will grow at
a compound annual growth rate (CAGRE) of 34 9 percent
from 2022 to 2000, In the same repaort, Kenya was ranked
amongst the top ten countries, globally, projected
experience the highest growth in real-time payments (bank
account-io-account transfers). In comparison with 2020
transaction statistics, there was an increase of 21.3 percent
and 35.6 percent in volume and value of processed
transactions respectively.
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Druring the vear, IP5Ls strategy and commitment 1o the
industry was centered around the following:

= Enhancing trust and activating consumers

= Diversifying our product and service offering

= Building scale

ENHANCING TRUST AND
ACTIVATING CONSUMERS

To build trust and drive utilisation in a payment
ecosysiem, the plattorm must guarantee transaction
success and a seamless consumer expenence, Al 99,99
percent uplime, the Pesalink platform continues 1o
prowide a secure open-loop ecosystem for real-time
money transfers. Following PesaLink's migration 1o a new
redl-time-payment switch and transition 1o 150 20022 in
October 2021, all connecting partners can now improve
their back-office operations and provide a beter consumer
experience.

Cyber security continues to be a critical part of 1PSLs
building blocks to enhance trust with consumens and
partners, In 2021, the company undertook an industry-
wide IT Security audit and vulnerability assessment to
ensune risks and cyber theeas ane not introduced into the
ecosystem by any connecting partner. Fully understanding
howe dynamic cybersacurity threats ane, we subject our
systems at IPSL 1o vulnerability scans and penetration
testing throughout the year and use the findings to further
-0 our environment and deploy technologies that

DIVERSIFYING OUR PRODUCT AND
SERVICE DFFERING

IPSL continues to focus on strategies fo expand its product
suite bevond person to person (P2F] to launch new

use cases that would support open banking initiatives
and enable business and government-related paymants
through imvestments in technology modernization to drive
product and service innowvation and in is people,

BUILDING SCALE

With the ongoing migration of banks to the new 150
20022 and the onboarding of all banks nat live an
Pesalink by Q4 2022, the company’s strategic focus is to
consolidate the network effects of enabling all banks on
PesaLink rails. There are ongoing engagements with hanks
that are not live on Pesalink with a view o understanding
their anboarding journey and providing technology
achdsory as may be required. Against this backdrop, all
banks in Kenya would enable their consumers to mitiate
PesaLink transactions, receive inbound ransactions across
all banks and offer differentiated services to corporate
consumers leveraging Pesalink's capabilities.

OUTLOOK FOR 2022

During the last quarter of 3021, with support from F50
Kenya, IPSL initiated work on the development of a new
strategy (2022-2024) which Involved input from key
stakeholders including the Central Bank of Kenya, Banks,
fintech leaders and the IPSL board with the guidance of a
team af experts. The strategy, themed “Winning payments
Back o the Banking Sector, was finalized and adopted at
the back end of the yvear will focus on theee key pillars;
Governance, Excellence and Product development.

Whilst the most immediate attention has been on
stabilizing the P2P offering by putting in place robust
scheme rules that will govern the implementation of
Pesalink, work has already besn initiated on increasing
the product offering for deployment before the close of
the vear. In parallel, the new economic and pricing model
that was approved by the Governing Council as part of the
siralegy came into effect on 1° lanuary 2022. This change
introduced membership fees and a shift 1o a 3-tier tariff for
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REPORT FROM THE KBA CENTRE FOR
RESEARCH ON FINANCIAL MARKETS

AND POLICY®

Lemired Bank of Xemen Depuly Governoe Shetp WMDY wwee, £BA Doveraing Lounon Chairmgn fohr Gedhnaro, Govermng Councl

werabers Geridl Worui ong Moerz Wir, KBA CEO Dr. Hotsi Dioka, ascussonts pnd fesearchers dur Wg the Assooigrian’s 1P

Arvivadl Baviking Hegeavit Conlerénde

OPERATING ECONOMIC ENVIRDNMENT

The KBA Centre for Reteanch on Podicy and Financial and an improvement in |]1i1-.'-lh;“ secior credit gu_w.-rh
Markets'® continued o support the banking industry’s However, while private sector credit growith improved
strategic policy engagemeant through its analytical work in the year, it tapered off at below double-digit lovels
on varkows markel and policy dynamics, The operating tovwarcls the end of the yvear constrained by an elevated
economic environment was characierized by a significant credit risk and restrictive pricing conditions.
slowdown in putput that was attribuied io the adwerse

effects of COVID-19 pandemic and its containmem i) The 10™ Annual KBA Eﬂ.ﬂkiﬂg

MEeELLUTES Research Conference

Ciiven a narrowing fiscal space, monetary policy remained The KBA Cenire for Research on Financial Markets

a key policy lever The Monetary Podicy Cormrmbies and Policy sucoessfully hosted the 10 Annual KBA
{(MPC) ol the Central Bank of Kenya (CBK) since the onset Banking Research Conference on September 27-

of the pandemic remained vigilant and mamtained an 24, 2021. The Research Conference is the Cantre's
accommodative policy stance from Apnl 2020 through flagship event through which ideas and insights in
2021. This resulted in an improvement in the market areas of interest to the banking industry are discussed,
liquidity conditions, declines in short-term money market and policy prescriptions highlighted.

inleresy rates as Ir'r'|||i||]_l| rales remained |,-'|rj_[l,-|'.- LI ||.1|1!,;|,'r[
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The theme of the Conference was: “Banking Beyamd
COVID-T9: Risk-Assessmient, Balance Sheet
adjustments and Exploring Options and Pathways o
Strong and Sustainable Foonomic Recovery.”

Thee Conference presented an opportunity to focus on

banking beyond the COVID-1% pandemic, especially

on the nsk assessment, balance sheet adjustments

and, and strategies 1o bring about a srong and

sustainable economic recovery. It spatlighted on three

interrelated areas

= First, whether the COVID-19 pandemic altened
traclitional views about risk and its assessment at
the sector and aggregate level;

= Second, whether the pandemic triggered
adjustments in bank balance-sheet structures, in
particular seeking 1o estabilish how the structural
changes occasioned by the pandemic influence
thr banking sector’s path/evolution post-
pandemic; and

= Third, ascertain the economic effects of the
pandemic at bath aggregate and sectoral level,
with the objective of identifying any evident
potential channels that could be exploned
towards a strong and sustainable recovery.

KB4 Reraoveh and Pokcy Diceaor D, Samds’ Tinodago (REng ong'
Strarfimave LInder DS iokesh Thaus il the 10 Anvoue! Borking
Aesrorch (onference

The eight (8) papers and a methodological session

presented at the conference werne

1.

What Drives MSME's Credit Choices? Business
Versus Personal Loan Accoumt Utifisation in
Kernva: By Hillary Mulindi, Kiplangat Josea, &
Samiued Tiriongo (KBA]

Banking System Adjustment to Shock: The
Kenyan Case of Liguidity-Profitability Trade-Oifs:
By ared Osoro (FS0A) and Kiplangat josea (KBA)
A Review of the Asset Quality Assessment in the
Absence of Quality Data towards Optimal Credit
Intermediation: By Andrew Mjeru, KCB Group
Data Analytics: Methodological Session: By John
CHikury & Joseph Theun Gitonga, Strathmone
Liniversity

COVID-19, Policy Interventions, Credit Grawth
and Financial (In)Stahility: By Gillian Kimundi,
Strathmone Liniversity

Diversification, Loan Loss Provisions and Bank
Earmings Duning the COVID-19 Pandemic:
Evidence from Kenya: By Rogers Ochenge, Embu

Liniversity & Strathmore University
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7. Bank Capital, Credit Risk and Financial Stability
in Kemya: By Samuel Kiemo, Camilla Talam &
Irene. W. Rugiri, CRK

8. Macroeconomic Shocks and Credit Risk in the
Kenyan Banking Sector: By Faith Atiti, Stephanie
Kimani & Raphael Agung, NCBA Bank

9. COVID-19 and the Finance-Economic Growth
Mexus in Kemya: By Benjamin . Maturu

ii) Publications

a. EBA 'l.-‘l.'r:rlulti.ﬂ[.:I F¢|:||:r Seriey - Arising froem the
Annual KBA Banking Research Conferences ans
thi: KBA Warking Paper Series publications. As
at the end of 2021, fifty fowr (54} papers had
been published in the series, drawing from the
presentations of all the conferences sa far hosted
by the Centre. These papers are an authoritative
source of knowledge that forms the basis of
engagement with other stakeholders, particularly
the regulator, Government, international partreers
and academia. The KBA Centre for Reseanch
on Financial Markets and Policy® undertakes
a rigorous review process before the papers

are published in the KBA Working Papers

Series, Some of the papers have subsequently
been published as journal anticles. From 2022
onwards the KBA Working Paper Series have
been escalated 1o a plobal repository of research
papers, accessible via hitps:theww. econsior,
euhandle’ 1041 ¥ 249500; seeking o expand
their visibility and shape glabal views about the
banking environmend in Kenya

The KBA Policy Briefs, the first in the series, was
initiated in 2021 and published in 2022 and
provides non-technical summanies highlighting
policy insights generated from eight KBA
Working Papers presented during the 10 Annual
Kemya Bankers Association Banking Research
Conference held in September 2021,

The KBA Economic Bulletin - a publication that
is an easy read with a succingt overview of the
state of the economy and its outlook. During the
year, KA Fconomic Bulletin, Volumes 30 and 31
wiere published, The Bulletin has received positive
feedback from the wide readerchip it is now
drawing.
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Micro, Small
~Medium

Enterprises
SURVEY REPORT - 2021

The KBA State of the Banking Industry Report -
an annual publication aims at contributing o the
understanding of the Kenyan banking industry. In
2021, the third edition of the State of the Banking
Industry Report covering data lor 2020 was
publishied by the Centre for Research on Financlal
Markets and Policy®.

The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Survey
Report 2021 - A Survey Report, jointly published
by the Kenya Bankers Association [KBA) Centre
for Research on Financial Markets and Policy@
and |apan International Cooperation Agency
(ICA) was published, The Report aimed at
providing information to bridge the information
gap between MSMEs and financial institutions

In pursuit of this, the report sheds light on

the MSMEs ecosystem by collecting data on
entrepreneur and enterprise characieristics,
supply chain and customer engagements, and
utilization of formal and informal financial
instruments.

Riegular Research Nofes - During the year, six
{6) Research Motes - Note 53 to Note 58- were

L

RS BARHE RS

STATE OF THE BANKING
INDUSTRY REPORT 2021

isswed and published on the KBA website, with
each issued one week ahead of every meeting of
the Monetary Policy Commines (MPC) of CBE. In
addition, four (4} post-MPC commentares wene
also ssued (o the KBA Membership to comment
on the additional information considered by the
MPC in their decisions.

KBA Housing Price Index (KBA-HPI)

Since the launch of the Housing Price Index in
February 2015, the KBA Centre for Research

on Financial Markess and Policy® has been
publishing, on a quarterly basis, the KBA HF
Report. In 2021, three (3} quarterly KBA-HPI
reports were published, as the reports continued
to receive wide recognilion and positive

acknowledgement.

Fixr rroee [nformation about the Centre for Research
on Policy and Financial Markets® please visit
hittp:/farwew. kba co kefresearch-center
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REPORT ON CREDIT
INFORMATION SHARING

In 2022 and beyond, the revamped
Tatua ADR Centre will leverage

on its competences built through
six years of resolving Ci5-related
disputes to offer a broader scope
of dispute resolution services for
the entire Ainancial sector.

As Kenya's ecanomy conbinees o rebound from the
impact of COVID-19, CIS Kenya remains focused on
accomplishing its mission of facilitating generation and
use of accurate credit information for the: benedit of all

participants in the credit market

in 2021, CI5 Kenya, in collaboration with the World Bank,
prepansd a repart entitled Impact of COVID-T9 on Credit
Reportimg Sysfems — Kenya Case Study, available on

the: link hitps.fciskenya.cokehwp-contentfiles 202 203/
Kenyi: Heport-A 10003, pdf

A number of policy directives and legal reforms had
significant impact on the credit information sharing (CI15)

iramework,

0% dnckistyy Dol sigming @nd handing membership certificate to Raben
My, Fownder & CFD -ReniCo Afcg Limifed

I Chisdngser Husp, idevim (e o |
Covparaio (KT

9CIS..

Fosiar & Mo faeery or el =l

O ity Cooe of Comduct Signang - O Kevgen CFO joved Gedengr o

rrodral o Waermas D igenien ]

THE CENTRAL BARK OF KENYA
(AMENDMENT] ACT, 2021

The law became effective on December 23, 2021 with
the principal abjective of bringing the provision of credil
or loan facilities through digital channels under the
supervision of the Central Bank of Kenya (CBK). Amang
ather reforms, digital lenders are now required o disclose
o the licensed credit reference bureaus (CRBs] positive
and negative information alsoul their customiers a5
reasonably reguired for the discharge of their funclions
Digital lenders were barred by CBK In April 2020 from
participating in the CI5 mechanism due to public outery
that some credit providers wene misusing ihe mechanism

Pursuant to this law, CBK (Digital Credit Providers)
Regulations, 2021 were gazetted on 18™ March 2022,
providing a six-month window for digital lenders 1o apply

for licensing by CBE,

NECATIVE DATA SUPPRESSION

Legal Notice No, 225 of Nowember 5, 202 1 suspended
CRA listing of negative credit information for borrowers
with loans below KSh. 5 million, whose loans were

performing previously, but had become non-performing
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from October 1, 2021, Further, CRBs were instructed

niat 1o include in any credit report, any negative credit
Information for loans of a customer less than K5h.5 million
submitied between Ciciober 1, 2020 ilIuiEEptElTIJEI 0,
2021, for a period of 12 months from October 1, 2021, to
Seplember 30, 2022,

This directive had the potential of compromising reliability
of credit scores and ather credit bureau products, and
CBK cautioned that the suspension could adversely impact
the provision of credit by banks to the target (MSMEs)
group.

C15 Kenya engaged its membirs with the lollowing
Activities in the year 20271;

LAUNCH OF CIS INDUSTRY CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct, approved by CBK on 18" May
2021 in accordance with Regulation 24 (8} of the CRB
Regulations 2020, empowers CIS Kenya to implement
minimum standards on unregulated credit providers

to ensure robusiness of the mechanism and address
numennus concems raised by CBK on data quality and
consumer protection. The official launch was held on 2+
September 202, presided over by Mr. Kiprono Kittony
{Chairman, Nairobi Securities Exchangel. CI5 Kenya's
Chair and Vice-Chair, Mr, Charles Ringera and Ms. Mbatha
Mbithi respectively, addressed the forum alongside
representatives of the World Bank Group, Kenya Bankers
Association, CRBs and Leasing Association of Kenya

ONDOARDING NON-BANKS T0 JOIN
THE CIS FRAMEWORK

Following faunch of the Code of Conduct, CIS Kenya
implemented a roadmap for on-boarding third-party CIPs
into the Ci5 mechanism in collaboration with CBK and all
licensed CRBs and with support from FSD Kenya.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
CENTRE FOR CRB DISPUTES

Tatua Cenfre, the Aliernative Dispute Resolution Centre
established by CI5 Kenya to resolve CIS disputes obtained

regisiration as a separate legal entity in April 2021. The
Centre now enjoys greater independence and enhanced
opporunities for expanding its mandlate,

TRAINING AND CONFERENCES

The Kenya C15 Virtual Conference, held an 9* March
2021, offered a platform for more than 150 leading sector
players in Kerya's credit market, led by the CBK Governor
Drr. Patrick Mjoroge, to review the impact of COVID-19
pandemic and related paolicy and regulatory interventions
an the CI% mechanism. Organized by CI5 Kerya and
addressed by the World Bank, the conference provided
insights on managing credit nsk in the context of the
COVID-19 environment.

The C15 learning Centre continued offering trainings that
equip crindil practitioners with skills to implement risk-
based pricing in the COVID-19 environment. Notable
trainings included “Supercharnge your Collections -
Leveraging credit infrastructure and skiltsets for optimal
eollections = held in Naivasha between 25%-27% August
2021 and an in-house training for Mwalimu MNational
Sacco held between 285" and 29° Seplember 2021,

COMMUNICATIONS AND CONSUMER
ENGAGEMENTS

CIS Kenya's key messages through its various social media
platforms and media intenviews with the CEO, Mr. Janed
Cetengta centred on application of the Code of Conduct o
enhance data quality, consumer awareness and customer
centricin

WAY FORWARD

The Centre has therefore expanded its panel of experts
to enahle it offer arbitration services alongside mediation
ard can be reached via falua@tatuacenter.co ke or

07 12973345.
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SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY
REPORT

The year 2027 was anather turbulent year paved with
uncerainty owing to the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic. The health crisis continued to take a toll on the
gconony, communities and families worldwide.

Policy interventions taken by the Kenyan Government,
coupled with a mase vaccination rollout, continued 1o
cushion households and businesses from its devastating
impact. The banking industry, a critical cog to the resilience
of the economy, exercised its influence to bolster recovery
effarts while also upholding the triple bottom-line ideal.

In fact, KBA member banks restructured 300,000 loan
accounts worth KSh. 1.7 trillion between March 2020 and

A total of
300,000 loan
accounts
worth

ksh. 1.7

trillion

were restructured between
March 2020 to February 2021

February 2021. The loans restructured were mainly from
households, trade, Real Estate, manufacturing, transport,
and communication sectors—all of which were gravely
affected by the pandernic. As a result, the year saw a partial
economic improvement. Despite operating in a difficult
and volatile environment, the steps taken by banks only
reinforced their commitment to deliver the Sustainable
Development Goals,

In 2021, Kenya Bankers Association (KBA) augmented
the banking sector's efforts by driving key industry-wide
programs, in addition, the Association championed vital
ComsUMEer awareness campaigns designed to empower
the public. The following are the initlatives that were
undarizken in 2021 by KBA.

ENHANCING DIGITAL FINANCIAL SAFETY

As the banking public continued to utilize contactless
fimancial services to curb the spread of the coronavins,
the Association accelerated its efforts in creating consumer
awareness on digital vulnerabilities through the annual
Kaa Chonjo! Card, Mobile and Online Safety Awareness

Campaign.

To this end, KBA parinered with PesaLink, VISA Kenya,
Kenya Society for the Blind (KS8), Assaciation for the
Physically Disabled of Kenva (APDEK), Communications
Authority of Kenya (CA) and Consumer Grassroots
Association (CGA) to sensitize the public to be vigilant
and not fall prey to fraudsters while transacting on
bank channels. Through the parinership, the key safety
awareness messages from the campaign reached
approximately 98.4 million people across mainstream
media and soclal networking platiorms, Thermed,
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] L b ® RAMPING UP COVID-18
VACCINATION EFFORTS

In & span of two-years, the world witnessed the destructive
and uncontrollable effects of the COVID-19 pandemic,
The Internabional Monetary Fund (IMF) estimates that

the health crisis will cost the global economy more than
% LIS 12.5 trillion by 2024. In Kenya, the lost camings af
Approximatel
PP Y those affected and infected by the virus plunged countless

9& ‘ pisople b exireme poverty.
[

miilion
people were reached with q,ﬂ

messages on Card, Mobile
and Online Security c

| _ The banking
“Keeping Pace with Evolving Financial Services Securnty industr
Challenges” the campaign alsa enlisted member-bank \raccin:ted

suppart in the amplification of the awareness messages.

aver
Banks used multiple channels to sensitize the public on -
the imponance of protecting their Personal Idemification

Mumbers (PIN) and passwords. KENYANS
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In view of this, the Association daubled its efiods erERsmss
PROGRAH

o prowide Kemyans with an opportunity to get s @

vaccinated against the virus. Through its parinership mﬁ ﬂ m
with the Ministry of Health and Kemya Private Sector
Alliance (KEPSA), KBA conducted a vaccination drive
that benefited 2,950 Kenyars, The banking industry
also ramped up its efforts and vaccinated over 50
thousand people. By Décember 2021, nine million,
nine hundred and seventy-six thousand, seven
hundred and eighty-thres (9,976,783} Kemyans had
been vaccinated across the country as a resull of the

Government and private-sector interventions, The '
mass vaccination exercise enabled Kenya to curb the Date 24" June 2021 ‘<h
daily infection and death rates in the country, Time 10am-11am ear KENYA BANKERS

BOOSTING MSMES RESILIENCE THROUGH
FINANCIAL LITERACY

Micrn, Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (MSMEs)
remain at the centre of the country's economic
recovery and stability. Over the years, MSMWEs

have created employment 1o more than 15 million
Kemyans and contributed about 30 percent o the
Gross Domestic Product (GOP). Monetheless, they
struggle with various obstacles that inhibit their

ahility to reach their full potential, Many of them

EEA by LOMyTteaions ond Puhic Afnks Ofcer Roselme Kiino
demoriiroes the inuka Sntevprise Program eléarmng plalfoem oo karmer,

contend with inadecuate financial, as well ag,
business management expertise; lack of innovation;
insufficient working capital; and inaccessibility o
affordable finance. To enhance MSMEs” ability o overcome
these challenges, in 2018, KBA launched the Inuka SME
Program with the objective to build the capacity of start-ups
and MSMES to run their businesses optimally. Additionally,
the financial literacy training was designed o de-risk
entrepreneurs in order for them o be eligible to acoess bank

finance,

in 20217, KBA coordinated a series of online financial literacy

- £ + frainings in conjunction with Equity Growp Foundation,
Diarmond Trust Bank, as well as a community-based
organization in Kibra. Through the partnership with Equity

KNCCI members trained Croup Foundation, 33,600 Kenya National Chamber of

under the INUKA SME Commerce and Industry (KMNCCH members wene irained
curriculum across the country. Additionally, through the collaboration



INUKA SME PROGRAM WEBINAR SERIES
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IAULHA

Branding Monagement
Strategies fo Enhance
Business Performance

Date: 27* August 2021

Time: 10:00pm - 11:00pm Eva Muraya

HODERATOR

Elu:lu hﬂfr_r to mgrster

Arcess o {rée vimes| business training spansored by banks fhroegh visiling:
www.inukasme.co.ke
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IAYLnA

HEMY.A BAMNHERS

Succession Planning
Strategies for Business
Continuity

Patricia Okelo
KAYAMA CO-FOLUNDER

Accasy o freo virtwol business training sponsored by bonks through visiting: ..|<ﬂa
www.inukasme.co.ke HENYA BANKERS

iﬂ@&ﬁ &5 S iigdasue

Branding Management
Strategies to Enhance
Business Performance
Date: 4* November 2020 R
i 3. m - mm Sarah Kiptoo M‘fmmmm mm%
Cllck hem to regt&fer PRIME BAN, i e
il HEAD-BUSINESS BN

Aceans g free virdval businets troining sponsared by banks through viiting. ‘<h
www inukasme.co.ke HERYA BANKERS
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between the Association and Diamond Trust Bank,

1,747 MSMEs were upskilled under the KBA Inuka SME
Program curriculun, The training ook place in a span of
two-monihs through weekly virual sessions with Inuka
Iraimers.

Separately, in view of realizing the program's ohjective

of supporting MSMEs to formalize their operations, the
Assaciation engaged C.AR.O Foundation, a community-
based organization, 1o mobilize youth in Kibra to undergo
finamcial literacy trainings. Through the mobilization
exercise, 5,010 youths were trained under the program’s
g-learning platiorm to optimize and formalize their
operalions, During the exercise, C.A RO Foundation
representatives aided the youths to apply for KRA Pins and
register their businesses thus promoting formalization.

The KBA Secrefariat also conducted monthly raining
wiehinars designed 1o support MSMEs to navigate the
headwinds occasioned by the current health crisis. The
Association held 10 webinars and reached abaout 1,491
unigue participants. As a result of the combined efforts
from the banks and €A R.O Foundation, in 2021, 41,642
MEMEs were upskilled with financial lleracy taining
under the Inuka Enterprise Program,

1K MSMEs were trained

in 2021 under the
INUKA SME Program

In the same year, the Association comvened the virtual
Inua Biashara Summit. The week-long summit enabled
KiBA to rollout a series of events ko showcase the banking
indusiry’s commitment to support MSMEs. About 1,223
peaple attended the virtual event, with about 350
participating in the tradeshow where 39 banks displayed
their products and services in virlual booths.

DEEPENING CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

In resporee 1o improaving the banking public's customer
experience, the Association since 2018, has carried out
customer satisfaction surveys. The surveys have actively
provided insights on how banks can entrench customer
CEntrism.

29,791

Bank customers from the
country participated in the
2021 Customer Service
Survey

Im 2021, the annual survey attracted 29,791 responses up
from 15,179 in 2020, In the findings, Mabile Applications
(Apps) emerged i the prefered mode of transactions,
underpinning the level of usage of contactless banking
solutions in the wake of the health crisis, Feedback

from the survey also highlighted that mtemet banking
also ranked highly at 11 percent. Analysis of responses
from close to 30 thousand bank custormers revealed

that eight out of 10 (62 percent) clients had two to three
bank accounts compared to the 2020 rate of 77 percent.
According to the repost, the decline can be attributed

to reduced economic activity dwe o the COVID-19
pandemic,
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The survey responses placed Family Bank as the best
overall bank in digital experience, followed by Standard
Chartered Bank and Equity Bank respectively, Standard
Chartered Bank also retained its first-place position in

the tier 1 category, followed by Equity Bank and NCBA
Bank. Meanwhile, Family Bank emerged best in the Tier

Il category with Prime Bank and HF Group taking the
second and third positions respectively. ABC Bank topped
fn thie Tier Il category while Sidian Bank and Gulf African
Bank took the second and thind positions respectively.

ORIVING DISCOURSE TO FURTHER
FINANCIAL INCLUSION

Since 2012, the Associalion has prewvided the public a
unigue platform to engage with bank Chief Executive
Officers on various topics on banking. Through the My
Chat with a Bank CEO online platform, participants

are able to gain insights, advice while also providing
feedback during the live weh chat event 1o the CEO
hosting the session, In 2021, the Association held four
CEO Chat sessions, reaching an audience of 1244
millian. Participating CFOs were Credit Bank (Betty Korir);

Pt

My Chat with a
Bank CEO in 2021

reached an
audience of 1 z MM
&

Ecobank (Alakh Kobli); SBM (Moez Mirr); and Caritas
Microfinance Bank (David Mukaru),

DRIVING GREEN AND INCLUSIVE
FINARCE IN KENYA

The banking industry remains at the centre of driving
sustainable and inclusive economic growth, Financiers
have a unique opportunity to impact the economy,
environment and sociaty directly and indirectly as a resull
of the decisions they make. In order 1o empower hanks
to utilize their capital more responsibly and ensure that
thiry deliver value beyond their financial abligations, the
Association rolled out the Sustainable Finance Initiative
{5F1), Through the Initiative, the Association has driven
green and inclusive finance by encouraging the adoption
ol the 5F1 Guiding Principles, To ensure banks are well
aligned on the Principles, KBA undertook the following
activities under the Initiathe:

PERSONS WITH DISARILITY
ACCESSIBILITY PROJECT

In December 2021, KBA, in partnership with FSD Kenya
and Dweal elimu Plus, unvelled the Deal elimu Banking
Application at a forum that was officiated by Coniral
Bank of Kenya Governor, Dr. Patrick Njoroge. A ground-
breaking innovation in the region, the App is meant 1o aid
banks in their Kenyan Sign Language (KSL) training,. The
development of the App is drawn from recommendations
from the Trgital Access|bility Repart and Case Study that
was published by KBA in 2020. Ultdimately, the App seeks
to support efforts toewards the promotion of fimancial
inciusion of Deaf bank customers.

On the recommendation of CBK Governor, Dr. Patrick
Njoroge, KBA, is currently working to increase the
vocabulary on the App from 150 words to 300 bank-
enviranment terminologies. The effort is being coordinated
in partnership with Deaf Elimu Plus, a software
engineering firm mn by a Deal innovator,
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Mieanwhile, KBA has compiled a consolidated

industrywide roadmap based on individual accessibility PWD Pmil'"t HIE"“E‘I’

plans submitted by thirty-one member banks. The

roadmap seeks (o support banks to implement phased out = KBA developed a harmanized roadmap to
accessibility measures for the inclusion of PWD clients by guide banks on their accessibility journey
December 2024. The Roadmap for Digital Accessibility = KBA launched the Deaf Elimu Banking
and Financial Inclusion of Persons with Disabilities is a Keryan Sign Language (KSL) self-
voluntary guideline, embodying the activities of 31 KBA training App in a forum attended by CBK
member banks and international best practices. Governor, The App is now available on

both Androdd and i05 platiorms.

—  KBA developed a database of Kenyan Sign
Language and PWD Etiquette trainers
to support banks’ capacity building
initiatives,

= KBA comvened a workshop attended
bry both the trainers and banks Human
Resource teams to synergize on the KSL
and etiquette training model,

“ K Bank staff had enrolled country

for the SF1 e-learning with 27K+
having completed the training

CAPACITY BUILDING

KBA continued to build the capacity of the banking workiorce with knowledge 1o create long-term value for the economy,
society and the environment. In 2021, the Association was able to reach an additional 3,275 bank employees through

its Sustainable Finance Initiative e-learning platform, The bank emplovees who have undergone the training are currently
certified by the Kenya Institute of Bankers and are eligible for Continual Personal Development (CPD) points, By December
2021, about 36,468 bank employees had enrolled for the training with over 27 thousand having completed the online
course, In 2021, the Association rolled out two new modules, which included “Understanding the Blue and Green
Economy™ and “Dieepening the Banking Industry’s Understanding on Nature-based Solutions.” By December 2021, the
Green and Blue Economy module had reached 597 bank employees while the Nature-based Solution’s module had reached
431 bank staff, Below is a breakdown of the industry’s uptake of the SF e-leaming training;



Percentage Percentage
Hame of Bank Registered Completed
Absa Bank Kenya Ple 100 70%
Access Bank e 2%
African Banking Corp. Led 101% 4%
Bank of Africa 100% BEY,
Bank of Baroda (K} Lid 68% 43%
Bank of India 5% 1%
Citibank M.A. L £5% 26%
Co-operative Bank of Kerya Lid 57%h 40%
Consolidated Bank of Kenya Ltd 9% B%
Credil Bank Lid 0% 48%
Development Bank (K Ltd 16% 6%
Diamaond Trust Bank (K) Ltd 100 9%
DI Bank Kenya 100% 76%
Ecobank Kenya Limited 100% B3%
Equity Bank Lid 78% BEY
Family Bank Ld 01% BE%
Faulu Microfinance Bank B7% b6
Fidelity Commercial Bank Ltd 2% 1%
First Communiry Bank Ltd 77% 61%
Cuaranty Trust Bank Kenya Ltd 100% 94%
Cuardian Bank Ltd 48% 2%
Ciulf African Bank Ltd 123% 7%
Hahib Bank A G. Furich 101% 61%
HF Group_ 100% 81%
I & M Bank Lid 93% B5%
KCB Bank Kenya 100% 65%
Kenya Women Microfinance Bank 10% 5%
Kingdom Bank LTD 100% 93%
Mayfair Bank % 0%
Middle East Bank (K) Lid 102% 76%
Mational Bank of Kenya Lid 78% 52%
MNCBA Bank Kenya FLC 26% 25%
Ovriental Commercial Bank Limited 100% 87%
Paramount Universal Bank Lid 100% 92%

Postbank B% 3%
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Parcentage Percentage
Name of Bank Registered Completed
;Fr‘_m:e Bank Lid 50 4%
Rafiki Micro Finance 1% 0%
SEM Bank B2% 48%
Sidian Bank 107 % B5%
Spire Bank Limited 101% B2%
Stanbic Bank Kenya 3% biE%
Standard Charteeed Banlk (K} Led 100 6%
LIBA Kenya Bank Lid 495 21%
Wictoria Commercial Bank Ltd 100% 58%

ENVIRONMENTAL RISK PROJECT

KBA in parinership with Financial Sector Deepening (F50)
Kenya and International Union for Conservation of Nature
(ILACN) nitiated a project designed 1o generate a detailed
repart and a high-level market case study/white paper
with podicy recommendations to curb environmental risk
expasure on the banking industry while it extends finance
to clients in the real estate and manufacturing sector.

Key stakeholders engaged in the interviews included
representatives from banks, the Mational Ensironmsent
Management Authonty (NEMA); Architectural Association
of Kenya: Water Resource Authority; ADE; and Town and
County Planners Association of Kenya. Initial findings from
the stakehalder engagement with member banks indicated
that thero is a nesd for incentives for E&S Management
practices. Professional Associations cited use of outdated
land maps in various towns and overlap in regulations.

BLENDED FINANCE PROJECT

The Association together with FSD Kenya and Kenya
Climate Innewvation Centre (KCIC) partnered to implement
the Blended Finance Project. The project, funded by
FSD-Kenya, enabled entrepreneurs who are currently
being supported by KCIC with competitive financing and

technical assislance, fo scale further thelr enterprises
through leveraging on bank finance. The 10 identified
businesses underwent further capacity building training
under the Inuka SME Program and were supported to
access bank finance by the Association in 2027,

OUTLOOK

Early calls for banks 1o champion the Sustainable
Development Goals have borne tangible results in recent
years in Kenya. Banks have innovated in their allocation
and management of their resources o stimulate inclusive
economic growth despite the challenges occasioned by
the COVID-19 pandemic. Today, banks are alive 1o the
need 10 contribute 10 the country’s ambition for a green
and inclusive economic recovery.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE AND REPORTS OF
THE COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSONS

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL

The affairs, business and funds of the Association are vested in the Goveming Council which is the management
and policy making body of the Association. It has all such powers and perfarms all such functions as may be
necessary for carrying on the work of the Association or for realizing its objects and purposes.

in addition 1o the powers expressly conferred by the Constitution, the Governing Council may exercise all such
powers and do all such things and acts as may be exercised or done by the Association or by any law expressly
directed or required to be done by the Association in a General Mecting.

THE GOVERNING COUNCIL IN PARTICULAR HAS THE FOLLOWING RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. To purchase, lease, hire or acquire premises for the use of the Association and to equip and fumish them for
the abjects and the purposes of the Assaciation.

2. Tocreate such offices and posts with such powers and responsibilities and duties on such terms and
conditions and for such periods as may be deemed appropriate by the Governing Council, and 1o appoint
a Chief Executive Officer, other officers and staffl ag may be necessary fior the business of the Assaciation on
payment of such remuneration as may be determined by the Governing Council.

3. To establish a trust or trusts and appoint trustees thereof with the consent of the General Body and vest
the funds or the surplus income or any property of the Association in the trustees in such manner as the
Governing Council may from time to time think (il

4. To frame or issue rubes and procedures of working for the purpose of carrying on business and work of the
Association as may be necessary from time o time with the appreval of the General Body

5. To delegate any function or powers to Commitiees, Sub Committees or person and to any Member, the Chiel
Executive Officer, other officers or employess on such terms and conditions as may be necessary and to
revoke any such delegation if and when necessary.
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6. The Governing Council may, at any time, invite any Member of the Association not being a Member of the
Governing Council 1o attend or serve on the Council, or any Committee or Sub Commities or may consult
any outside person or authority if for any special reason such as a course may seem to it 1o be advisable,

7. To present a report on the working of the Association and a Statement of Accounts of the Association duly
certified by the Auditors at the Annual General Meeting of the Association every year.

8. To appoint Bankers, Auditors, Advocates, Accountants, and other professional advisers to the Association,

9. Where an Associate Member converts into a branch of a foreign bank or locally incorporates an entity to
enter the market or wishes to become a member of the Automated Clearing Housa, the Governing Council
will have the right to admit and convert such a Member into an Ordinary Member.

10. The Governing Council shall have the right to assess the level of costs incurred by the Association in
generating the benefits accruing to Associate Members and use the same to determine the fixed annual
subscription fee payable by such membership.

11, To call a General Meeting at any lime should it think necessary to do so.

12, Tovdo any or all things as may be necessary or expedient.

The property, assets and funds of the Association shall, subject to the liabilities thereol, be vestod in the
Coverning Council of the Association and no Member of the Association shall by reason of its membership have
a transferable or assignable share of interest thesein by operation of law or otherwise in any such property, assets
of lunds and in the event of any Member of the Association ceasing 1o be a Member in terms of Clause 22 of

thie Canstituthon ar in any other way, its interest in such property, asset and funds shall cease and the same shall
survive, accrue and belong to the other Members for the time being of the Association.

COMPOSITION AND TENURE OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL

At the conclusion of every Annual General Meeting, one third of the members of Large Banks, ane quarter of
the Medium-size Banks and one half of Small Banks of the Governing Council shall retire from the Governing
Council by rotation. The Members to retire by rotation shall be those who have been the longest in office. Where
any of the Members have been in office for the same length af time, the Members to retire shall be decided by
drawing lots,

The retiring Members shall be eligible for re-clection and appointment.
At a minimum, the Governing Council consists of the following;

A, Six members representing the large banks

B. Four members representing medium size banks

C.  Two members representing the small banks

The Chairman and the Vice Chairman of the Association shall come from the 12 members in A, B and C, abave,



STRUCTURES TO BETTER
SERVE MEMBERS & INDUSTRY

Over the years, KBA has enhanced its governance and organisational structures to improve the Association's
ability to deliver an its mandate.

GOVERNINCE 4-

Commithes

Bank Security Sub
Commilies

Bank IT Systems, Hisks &
GCOVERNING Spcurity Sub Comminee
COUNCIL

Cloaring Hodise Sub
Ciprrithes

Tax Sub Cormerites qL -
Firancial darkees Subs i‘.‘ [l Ciatrarmithes
Cammiice ' Credit and Blamic
Finanoe Advisory Sub
CawmamiTless
KBA SECRETARIAT
Sanlor Research and Policy OHfi
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ® Senior Researc icy Offces
®  Ressasch Inbem
DIRECTOR
Research & Policy
—— b Senior Technical
Communication & Officer
i irs Ciltiee DIRECTOR
R rorrar it DIRECTOR  » Technical Officer
Communicathon &
Pulbdic Adfairs Oilicer
DIRECTOR CHIEF
Legal, Human
s e
Palicy Acvocacy
*  Acconian

HR & Legal Officer o

Full Time Employees: 18
Inesrs: L]
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GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETINGS

The Governing Council meets at least every quarter in a calendar year. During Council meetings, the members receive a
report from the KBA Secretariat including submissions fram the Committee and Sub Commitiees.

In the year 2021, a total of five meetings were held, including ane special mestings. At the 2021 Annual General Mesting,
Salaam Microfinance Bank was elected to the Council.

Humber of Meatings
Hame of Bank Jan-Dec 2021 Percentage
KCH Bank Sof6 83.3%
NCEA Bank Sof 6 43.3%
Giulf African Bank 4 0f 6 6%
| & M Bank 20f2 100%
Co-Operative Bank 6ol & 100
DTB Kenya 6 of & 1060%%
Middle East Bank 6 of & 100%%
Equity Bank 6ol b 100%
Family Bank 6ol 6 100%
Guaranty Trust Bank 3ol 6 50%
Standard Chartered Bank 5of 6 33.3%
DIB Bank Kenya 3 of 6 50
Absa Bank 6 of b 100%
Citibank 6ol b 100%
SBM Bank 5 of & B31.3%
Deselopment Bank 4ol b 67 %

NOTE: Governing Council ond KBA Carmmvites members serve on a vohuniary basis
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REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSONS

KBA activities are managed by the Secretarial which works in coordination with seven Commitmess and saven Sub
Committees. KBA Member Banks nominate representatives on an annual basis to serve on these commitiees which elect
their officials. Members participate on a voluntary basis. The following ane the reports.

Nome of Commities COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
Chalrperson Laban Omangi - Absa Bank

Vice Chairpersen Daisy Mamayi - DIB Bank Kemya

Secretary Kennedy Mutisya - Kenya Bankers Association

P

Committes Achisvemesnts in 2027

1. The Sub Commities was elevated to a full committes by the KBA
CGovemning Council due to the critical role the committee has played
as well as the active performance of the committes aimed 1o realize is
mandate,

2. Enhanced stakeholder relationship with regulators by facilitating
commitiee engagement with the following regulators:

a) Unclaimed Financial Assets Authority

bl  Ethics and Anti- Cormuption Commission

gl Odfice of the Data Protection Commissianes
d)  Assets Recovery Agency

@l  Financial Reporing Cenire

fi  Kenya Revenue Authority

3. Supported and promoted Banking sector technical capacity through
training and awareness sessions and workshops. During the year the
committes hosted the follow training sessions;

il Financial Crime Training

fil Human Trafficking
il SWIFT KYC

ivl Mansa KYC

v Data Privacy

vl PesaLink upgrade process

4. Panicipated in the National Risk Assessment (MRA) o identity

hanking sector Money Laundering vulnerabilities and deficiencies and
parnicipated in preparation of the country sieategy action plan 1o mitigate
against the gaps identified,

Committee Goals for 2022

= To confinue enfrenching and enhance stakeholder relationships with ey

stakeholders through engagement with CBEK, FRC, CThA, W5E, LIFAA,
RBA and other relevant compliance stakehalders in relation to the

development of policy and legislation on compliance isswes and restone
trust and public confidence.

- Reinforce and elevate industry technical capacity and professional

competence for compliance officers through targeted and relevant
trainings, workshops and seminars. Some of the earmarked trainings
will focus on financial crime, Data pratection law and on Anli money
laundhering



_ EEMYA BANKERS ASSOCIATION

Home of Committes Compllance Committes Conbd.
- Participate and support directed 1o build the Compliance Society of
Kenya (C5K) o promate compliance professionalism development in the
country.
Nome of Bank Attendance Record Parcentage
NCBA Bank = Bof12 67%
Bank of Africa (K) 7ol 12 58%
DB Bank Kenya Boll2 67 %
Stanbic Bank 9of 12 75%
ABSA Bank 11 af 12 92%
SBM Bank 11 of 12 92%
Cililsarnk 7of 12 58%
Equity Bank 9of 12 75%
Sidian Bank 10af 12 B3%
HF Group ) fof 12 67%
Mational Bank 9of 12 75%
Bank of Baroda Taof12 58%
Kenya Women Microfinance Bank rof12 58%
KCB Bank Saof 12 42%
Faulu Microfinance Bank Bal12 B %
LIBA Kenya Bank 5af12 42%
Guli Allrican Bank 7al12 8%
Co-Operative Bank 10 of 12 #3%
| & M Bank 11 of12 92%
Standard Chartered Bank S5of12 12%
DTH Kemya Buofl12 (%
Ecalxank Tol12 SH%
M Orriental Bank 4 of 12 33%
Victora Commercial Bank 1of 12 %
First Commaunity Bank 2ofl2 17%

The Compliance Sub Committes met twelve tirmes in 2021,
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Hame of Committes

Vice Chalrpersaon

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

Catherine Mugane - Diamond Trust Bank
Davis Ayako - SBM Bank
Kennedy Muisya - Kenya Bankers Association

Committes Achievements in 2021

- Provided an interactive platiorm for the member banks 1o share
experience and knowledge on industry wide challenges.

- Provided oversight to the Tax Sub Committee, KBA 2022 budget review
and approval, KBA 2021 budget rationalization as well as review of KBA
2021 management accounts and 2020 audited financial statements.

- Provided oversight on the recruitment and appointment of new auditors
lor KBA and IPSL.

- Participated in giving feedback to the Prudential guidelines review.

. Provided oversight support and guidance to the Secretariat to rationalize
2021 budget 16 realize 10% savings in response o COVID pandemic call
to refocus Association activities on critical activilies.

Commitiee Goals for 2022 - Support KBA Tax Sub Committee to achieve its mandate in line with the
ferms of reference for the Sub Committee
- Enhance oversight to KBA and IPSL Finance functions to promote

efficiency.
Name of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
Abga Bank 1 of 4 25%
ABC Bank 4ol4 100%
Bank of Africa Kenya lof4 75%
Bank of Baroda 1of4 5%
Caritas Microfinance Bank 0ol 0%
Co-Operative Bank 2of 4 100%
DTE Kenya 4 of 4 100%
Ecobank 1 af 1 1005
Equity Bank 1 of 4 15%
Family Bank 10f 4 25%
Guaranty Trust Bank 1af1 100%
Gull African Bank 10f1 100%:
I & M Bank 2of4 50%




_ EEMYA BANKERS ASSOCIATION

Attendance Record Contd.

Mame of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
KCH Bank 0of 4 s
Kingdom Bank s 1ofl 100%
Middle East Bank Tafl 100%:
Mational Bank 1afi 100%,
KCHA Bank 2of4 0%
Paramount Universal Bank 2of4 50%
SBM Bank dof 4 100 %%
Sidian Bank Jol4 T5%
standard Chartered Bank dof 4 100%
LIBA Kenya Bank Zol4 0%
Wictoria Commerncial Bank 4 of 4 100%

Fhe Finance & Apgly Commuttee met four trmes in 2021,

Home of Committes

Chalrperson
Vice Choirporson

Secretary

FINANCIAL MARKETS SUB COMMITTEE

Philip Wambaua - ABC Bank
Anthomy Kirul - Absa Bank
Micholas Mutwa - ACT Chair - Standand Chartered Bank

The Financial Markets Committee (FMC), which is a representative of the

Kenya Banks Treasurers Forum (KBTF), spent a greater parnt of 2021 focused on

the following key objectives:

= To promote high-level market conduct and discipline in the Kenyan
Financial Markets

= To Develop and Nurture the Market

= Training of the Bank Dealers and Treasurers

- Waorking closely with CBK in establishment of a CSD system

- Holding post MPC briefings with the CBK direcior Financial Markets

Sub Committes Achievements
la 2021

1. Promotion of high level market eonduct and discipline:

The year 2021 was unique: due 1o the continued challenges resulting from
COVID-19 pandemic, which affected various businesses in the Kenya
financial markets, This called for the need to closely monitor the financial
markets activity amang the dealers given the possibility of currency
walatility at such times.

The financial markets committee is pleased 10 report that we had many
engagements with all the banks treasusers and dealers in order to
emphasize on the need for high level market conduct and discipline.
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Mame of Committes Financial Markets Sub Committee Contd.

2. Development of the Financial Markets in Kenya:
In an endeavour to develop the financial markets, some of the treasures
representatives have been engaged with our regulator 1o give ideas and
support on the upcoming Central Securities Depository (CSD). This is
a key project that will promote the deepening of the Kenyan financial
markets and is envisaged to be accompanied by many benefits.

In additson, the chairman of the treasurer forum and vice chair are active
members of the bond market stakehalders forum.

3 Training of the Bank Dealers:
Finally, the FMC in liaison with ACI conducted the following trainings in
2021.

Training Trainer Date Delegates
1. ACI Dealing Certificate Peter Skerrit March 2021 12
2. Glohal Code of Conduct  Peter Skerrit May 2021 36
{Treasurers)
3. Global Code of Conduct  1CAP May to june 215
(Diealers) 20
4. Financial Market Sales ICAP August 2021 10
Name of Bank Attendance Record Parcentage
ABC Bank 17 of 17 1005
Stanbic Bank 150617 B8%
Co-Operative Bank 170f 17 1005
Mhsa Bank 15017 B8%
SBM Bank 16 of 17 94%
Middle East Bank 14 of 17 B2%
Crelit Bank 150f 17 BE%

The Finonciol Markers Sub CormmitTes mel sevenieen tmes in 2027,



Hame of Commities

Chalrparson
Viee Chairperson
Secratary

TAX SUB COMMITTEE

Peter Mungai - Ahsa Bank Kenya PLC
Lydia Ndirangu - Equity Bank Kenya
Kenniedy Mulisya - Kenva Bankers Association

Suly Commiti=s Achisvements in

20

1.

Successiully published KBA Total Tax Contribution (TTC) report for the
hanking indusiry for the FY 2019 & 2020, This was launched on 2+
September 2021 during a breakdast session attended by key stakeholders
and reported widely in various media channets. The report was submitted
and recognized by the Mational Assembly.

Hosted an industry wide sensitisation workshogp in conjunction with
Anjarwalla & Khanna LLP law firm in July 2021 for an update on the
impact of the Finance Act 2021 on the banking sector. Areas covered
included the ollowing:

- Key highlights on Finance Act 2021 impacting the Banking Sector;
- Update on recent Court rulings judgments relating to the industry;
- Update on WHT court cose on cand business; and

= LUipdate on curment industry tax issucs.

Conducted training 1o the Judiciary Academy in collaboration with the
Kenya Revenue Autharity (KRA)L The training was aftended by 30 judges
tn the Commercial & Tax Division. The training focussed on tax malters
affecting the banking industry.

Submitied banking indusiry feedback on Common Reporting Standards
draft regulations,

Held stakehalder mesting with the KEA in Movember 2021 o discuss
tax issues and challenges affecting the industries and strategies for
remediating the challenges.

Made proposals and presentations to the Mational Treasury and the
Parliamentary Committee on Finance and Mational Planning on Finance
BillfAct 2021,

Sub Committee Goals for 2023

Enhance relationship with Kenya Revenue Authority through regular
consultative engagements with KRA relationship team responsible for the
Banking Sector.

Publich 2021 PwCKBA TTC report for the banking industry and present io
relevant national stakehaolders.

Haosl tax sensitisation workshop in conjunction with tax consultants for
the industry after the publication of the Finance Bill'Act 2022 o sensitise
ripmbiers of the proposed changes therein and how thiy impact the
banking sector. Other workshops will be organised as necessary when
there are emerging controversial fax matiers affecting the members.
Participate in the Finance Bill/Act 2022 submissions {already submitted 1o
Mational Treasury) for industry proposals to be considered for inclusion.
Hold quarterly Tax Sub Committen meetings.

Support in strategic management of the Withholding Tax Card case
currently at the Supreme Court and suppost in stakeholder engagements
and negotiations with card companies.
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Mame of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
Abza Bank Kenya PLC dofd 10086
ABC Bank 3oi 4 75%
Bank of Africa Kenya Jofd 75%
Bank of Baroda dofd 100%
Caritas Microfinance Bank 1ol 100%
Co-Operative Bank dofd 100%
DTB Kenya dof 4 100°%
DIE Bank Kenya Jofd 7%
Ecobank 4 of 4 100%
Equity Bank 2old 50%
Guli African Bank Jofd 75%
| & M Bank 2ofd 50%
KCE Bank Jofd4 75%
National Bank 1ofd 25%
NCBA Bank 4of 4 1007%:
Paramount Liniversal Bank Jold4 75%
Prime Bank 2of4 50%
SBM Bank 1ol4 25%
Spire Bank 1 of4 25%
Stanbic Bank 4of 4 100%
Standard Chartered Bank 2of4 505
Wictoria Commercial Bank Fofd 75%

The Tow Sub Comemitee mel four fimes in 2027
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S e e LR

Name of Committee

Chalrperson
Vice Chotrparson

Sporotory

HUMAN RESOURCE & ETHICS COMMITTEE

Robley Ngoje - KCB Bank
Wangare Gathu = Sidian Bank
Raimond Molenje - Kenya Bankers Association

Tha Commitios's mandate
Inehuses

1. Establish and maintain good industrial relations and ethics in the indusiry.

2. Foster professional human resource management practices within the
industry.

3. Facilitate best practice professional training for bankers in Kenya.

4.  Provide machinery for collective bargaining negoifations on
remuneration, pay scales and other terms and conditions of service for
unonisable employees within the industry.

5. Develop and promate ethical behaviour and practices amorngsl memiisrs

Cammittos Achlevemants in 200

The year was distinet for the industry with the Commitiee negotialing both the
full collective bargaining agreement (CBA) for the period 2021 to 2023 as well
as the Wage Re-opener fior the previous year 2020 on behalf of the indusiry
with the Banking Insurance and Finance Union-Kenya (Union). The wage
discussions with the Union ook info consideration the COVID-19 pandemic
effects including the disruption of business aperations through closures and
|Iockdowns,

The Commities continued 1o provide leadership to the industry on mariers
human capital to sustain the over two decades of harmonious employes
relations within the banking industry.

The Secretariat coordinated with the Committee towards the Kenya Private
Sector Alliance (KEPSA) and the Minisiry of Health (MaH) initiative for
COVID-19 vaccination of the industry’s staff, their family members, and

the community within which the Industry serves, The vaccinatinns were
conducted at hanks premises, the Associalions offices in Nairobi and across
the variows counties between Cctober and December 2021, Through the
initiative, the industry was able to vaccinate over 50,000 individuals with the
single jab Johnson and Johnson COVID-19 vaccine and facilitated the full
return bo work for the industry by December 2021,
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Name of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
KCH Bank 8ol 10 0%
Standard Chartered Bank 10af 10 100%
Co-Operative Bank 10af 10 100%
Absa Bank Sof 10 0%
Stanhic Bank Bof 10 BO%
Sidian Bank 50l 10 50%
Development Bank Kenya Baf 10 80%
NCBA Bank Gof 10 0%
Bank of Baroda 8of10 B0
Guardian Bank 9af 10 D0
DTE Bank Gof 10 B0
SBEM Bank Bof 10 B
Mational Bank 10 af 10 100%

The Human Besource & Eihics Commilies mer i [imes in 2027
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Hame of Committes

1T SYSTEM & RISKS COMMITTLL

Chairperson Eclgar Mwandawiro - SBM Bank

Vice Chairparsen Kelevilin Kimathi - Equity Bank

Secretary Fidelis Muia - KBA Secretarial
This Commitee oversees the Following Sub Committees of the KBA:
1. Bank IT Systems Risks and Security Sub Committee
2. Bank Securily Sub Commiltes

Committae Achisvemients in 2021 Enterprise Risk

The IT systems and Risks Committee formed 2 taskiorce to develop a Risk
Heat map repart covering both Financials (credin, IT systems and Security,
Operational, Reputational and consumer protection, Market and Liuidity)
and Nan-Financial risks. The report covered the Banking Sector Cybersecurity,
Liquidity ratios, Capital ratios, NPLs and Cross loans and deposits. This report
informed an actions that should be undertaken to mitigate these risks,

Minimum Security Baseline Standard

The Bank IT systems, risk and security Sub Committee embarked on devising
the minimum haseline standards for all banks 1o adopt for managing supplier
related risks. They cover Third Party management, Cloud management,
Application Controls aned Carels.

Capacity Building and Training

The: bank security Sub Comminee organised and trained BFID officers on
Major bank frauds with key focus on digitalmobile and internet banking and
discussed challenges experienced by officers during investigations and their
resolutions.

The Bank IT systems and Risks Sub Committes held a forum with Serlany to
discuss the Interpol paper on African cyber threats, These promated awareness
of emerging threats in cyber crime and provided knowledge sharing on how
best to curb these attacks.

Public Sensitization compaigns

The Bank IT Systems, Risks and Security Sub Committes provided obsenations
ol eyber fraud incidences for the Kaa Chonjo Campaign o Sensitize the
customer s a unified front on anline cybercrimes, social engineering and
persanal PIN security. This campaign imvolves several players from the Retail
Secior, Mobile Network Operators and Card Schemes.
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Wome of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
Equity Bank 4of 4 100%
KCB Bank 4 of 4 100%
NCBA Bank Tof4 25%
Guaranty Trust Bank lofd 75%
DTB Kenya 20f4 25%
Family Bank 40f 4 100%
Standard Chartered Bank Jof4 75%
Mayfair Bank lof4 75%
SBM Bank 4of 4 100%
Co-Operative Bank 404 100%
Bank of Africa Jof4 75%
Sidian Bank dol4 100,
Absa Bank Jof4 75%
ABC Bank 3of4 75%

The T System & Risks Commeitee met four times in 2021

Name of Commitiee BANK IT SYSTEM RISKS & SECURITY SUB COMMITTEE

Chairperson Kabuthia Riunge - KCB Bank

Vice Chairpersen Leah Kimata - Co-Operative Bank

Secretary Anthony Chesaro - Family Bank

Sub Commitiee Achievements in 1. Controls baselining

202 Dratt copy was developed and reviewed by members. It was agreed that
this would be firmed up in 2022 and handed over 1o member banks via
KBA

2. SIM security controls
Intense lobbying by the Sub Committee for Safaricom 1o lower IMSI
security check calls from KSh. 20. Traction was achleved since the Telco
lowieresd this cost. Lobbying to confinue imo 2022 1o have this service
alfered for free in order to secure the ecosysiem.
Airtel is currenily offering this service for free.

3. Data Protection Act
The Commitiee invited the Kenya School of Law to offer training and
awareness to members.
Members contributed to the development of regulations.

&. Threat intelligence sharing
Key theeats that were shared amongst members include: sim fraud, card
enumeration fraud, insider threats, rogue devices, ATM skimming, rise in
faki wobsites,



_ KEMYA BAMEKERS ASSOTIATION

Nome of Committes

Bank IT System Risks & Security Sub Committee Contd.

Requests for hank CSIRT wese passed to KBA for CBK consullations.

Benchmarking with the South African Reserve Bank was done on
automation of threat intelligence sharing,

Sub Commitize Gools for 2022

= Mwtomation of Threat intelligence sharing,
Elections.
- Baselines for third party, card and mohile system.
- USIU KBA cybersecurity tralning targeting the youth.
= Team building

= Training of members on topical issues such as SWIFT security, card fraud

conirols.

Mame of Bank Attendance Record Percentoge
Ce-Operative Bank 8 of 10 0%
SEM Bank 5af 10 50F%6
Sidian Bank _6of 10 =
HNCBA Bank gof 10 0%
Standard Chartered Bank #of 10 B0
Equity Bank = . Aol 10 B0
Family Bank 10 of 10 100%
Gulf African Bank 7af 10 70%
Ahsa Bank 10 of 10 100%,:
KCA Bank 8of10 B0%:
Stanbic Bank 8of 10 BO%
I & M Bank Jof10 30%
Mayfair Bank 8of 10 BOY%
DTB Bank 10 of 10 100%
Citibank 4of 10 40%
National Bank 5of 10 0%
Bank of Africa 90f 10 90%
DIB Bank Kenya 20f 10 20
ABC Bank Gof 10 6%

The Berenke [T St Risks & Secority Sub Committes mel gieht times in 2021,



ANNUAL REPODRT AMND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021 —

Hame of Committes

Chairperson
Viee Chalrperson

Secretary

BANK SECURITY SUB COMMITTEE

Ben Shichenga - GT Bank

Edweard Muchirt - Equity Bank

Hiltary Godana - DI Kenya Bank

Faith Lumumia - Standard Chartered Bank

This Committee handles thi following 1asks:

1. Bank Security
Z. Bank Fraud
Sub Committee Achlevements in Quarterly Meetings

20

The Sub Committee conducted four meetings for members in 2021, During
the mestings, trainings wiere done and fraud trends affecting the industry
discussed. Notably, all meetings were virtual in accordance with COVID-19

protocols

Training for BFID Officers
The Subs Committes organised and trained BFID officers on major bank
frauds with a key focus on digitalimobile and internit banking and discussed
challenges experienced by officers during investigations,

Engagement with Telecommunication Companies and BFID

The Sub Committer conducted stakeholder engagement for Telcos, BRID
and Bank Security Managers to discuss rampant telco related frauds and
harmonize working relationship among all stakeholders

Training of Members

A training on crypiocurmency was conducted for members. Cryplocurrency
related frauds have been reported by bank customers, The training was meant
to enlighten members on the phenomenon. Ancther training on ISMI API for
Sim swap was conducted by Safaricom. Sim swap frauds are among prevalent
frauds in the industry,

Printer Inspection

The Sub Commitiee took part in security printer inspection in consultation
with KBA and the Clearing Sub Committes.

Review of KBA security standarnds
The Sub Committee has initiated the process of reviewing existing KBA
security standards.

Government CCTV Policy

Select members ook part in the public participation in regards to the draft
policy and gave recommendations through KEPSA, Security Committee and
KBA.

Working Relationship with Other Committees
During the year 2021, we saw a lot of improvement in working relationships

with other Sub Committees and the main committee. This fostered working
relationships among officers responsible for security, fraud and investigations
in the member banks.



Haome of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
Equity Bank Saf 4 100%
KCB Bank £ af 4 100%
Guaranty Trusi Bank 4l 4 ~1D0%
DTB Kenya Tof 4 5%
Family Bank 2of 4 30%
Standard Chartered Bank K 75%
I & M Bank 4of4 100%
NCBA Bank Iof4 5%
Co-Operative Bank Jof4 5%
Bank of Africa 40f4 100%
Sidian Bank Iofs 75%%
NCBA Bank 4of 4 100%
DIB Bank Kenya dofa 1065
Ecobank 4 af 4 T
First Community Bank Iof4 73'%
Faulu Microfinance Bank 3of4 75%
Crodit Bank Iofd 75'%
Pasthank 4of4 100%
Gulf African Bank Jold 75%
Kingdom Bank o4 75%
ABC Bank 4 of 4 100%
Stanbic Bank 4 af 4 100%
Middle East Bank 2 of 4 50%:
Absa Bank 4af 4 100%
HF Group Kenya Jaf 4 75%
Paramount Bank Jal4 75%
Victoria Commercial Bank 20f4 50%
Mayfair Bank 2of4 500%
Prime Bank 4of 4 100%
Bank of Baroda 2o 4 50%
Kenya Women Microfinance Bank 20of4 507
SBM Bank Jof 4 5%
Rafiki Microfinance Bank 1of4 25%

The Bank Security Sub Committes met four times in 2027,
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LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

Sieve Atenya - NCBA Bank

Belinda Ng'ang’a - HF Group Limited
Raimond Malenje - Kenya Bankers Association

[ ]

Providing a forum for member banks to discuss non-competitive isues
relating to the management of legal risks in the banking inchustry.

Monitor developments of new legislation, regulations and policies
affecting the industry and intervene for purposes of securing the industry's
interests and facilitate a conducive operating environment for hanks,
Advising the Governing Council and the industry on the impact of
proposed laws, regulations, and policies as well as court decisions having
an impact to the industry.

Stakeholder engagement an matters of interest to the industry with
diverse business member organizations and other institutions.

Undertake capacity building for the industry’s legal teams.

Commilttee Achlevements in 207

Ministry of Lands and Physical Planning

The Association engaged the Ministry of Lands and Physical Planning
following the launch of the National Land Infarmation Management
System {Ardhi-sasa) at the Nairobi and Central land registrics with the aim
of expediting the processing of the bank financed land transactions that
had been transitioned from manual 1o the digital Ardhi-saza system.

To facilitate the priority processing of the bank financed land transactions
on the Ardhi-sasa system, the Association compiled over 2,000 land
transactions from the industry and shared the same with the Ministry of
Lands to unlock the over KSh, 104 hillion that had been locked-up in

the delayed processing of the land iransactions within the Nairobi and
Central Land Registries.

Capacity Building for Commercial Judges on Tax

KBA continued its partnership with the Judiciary through the Judiciary
Training Institute and held three sessions with High Court Judges,
Magistrates and Legal Researchers highlighting the emerging regulatory
and digital transformation within the industry facilitated by the Family
Bank Chief Executive Ofiicer, Rebecca Mhbithi.

The Association partnered with the Kenya Judiciary Academy and
Kenya Revenue Autharity and held sensitization session for High

Court Commercial Judges and Researchers on the banking industry tax
challenges and emerging perspectives and developments. The industry
perspectives were provided by the Association'’s Chief Executive Officer,
the KBA Tax Committee Chair and the Managing Partner at Anjarwalla &
Khanna Advocates, Daniel Ngumy.
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Hame of Committes

Cammittee Achlevemants in d

oI

Leaal Affoirs Committee Contd.

3. Colloteral Registry

in partnership with the Business Registration Service under the Altorney
General’s Office and funding suppon from FSD-Kenya, the Association
held physical training sessions for over 500 officers from banks,
microfinance and saccos staff (Credit and Legal) 1o enhance the uptake
and impact of the collateral registry 1o the economy.

The Association was involved in the review and stakeholder

engogement with Members of Parliament on diverse sector

legislotions, regulations, and policies including:

a. Central Bank of Kenya (Amendment] Act 2021 - Regulation of
Digital Credit Providers
The Central Bank of Kenya (Amendment) Act 2021 was passed by the
National Assermbly and assented to by the President paving the way
for the reggulation of digital credit providers in the Country, except
for prioe regulated institutions including hanks, microfinance, saccos
among others that wete providing digital lending products.

b. Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering (Amendment) Act
N
The POCAMLA (Amendment) Act designated advocates in Kenya as
reporting persons under the Act having been passed by the Mational
Assembly and assented 10 by the President. The implementation
af the amendment has since been put on hold following the
conservatory order by the Court pending the hearing and
determination of the court case instituted by a member of the Law
Society of Kenya,

c. The Sectional Properties Act 2020 and 2021 Regulations
The Sectional Properties Act 2020 provides for the division of
buildings into units to be owned by Individual proprietars and
commaon property o be owned by proprietors of the units as tenants
in comman and the use and management of the units and comman
property. The Regulations to the Act were also gazetied thus fully
operationalizing the Act.

Coordination of industry litigation

The Association coordinated 14 cour cases to secure the industry’s
interests including the High Court Commercial Case No.433 of 2003
Wanjiru Florence & 187 others vs Standard Chartered Bank, KBA & CBK
case on the alleged levying of bank charges without Minister's approval.
The 1¢ Plaintiff Florence Wanjiru sued Standard Chartered Bank Kenya
Limited on grounds that the Bank had levied increased charges on her
account wilthout the approval of the then Minister for Finance. The
Central Bank of Kenva and the Association were joined in the case as
Regulator and Association, respectively. The case is pending for hearing
and determination.
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Home of Bank Attendance Record Percentoge
Stanbic Bank 6 of & 100%
Standard Chartered Bank B of 100%
Absa Bank b of 6 100%
Bank of Africa 6ol & 100%%
National Bank bof b 10
Co-Operative Bank 5of b B3%
KCH Bank Sofl6 B3%
OTE Kenyva S5of6 83%
DIB Bank Kenya 50f b B3%
HF Grop Limited 4of B 67%
Consalidated Bank Sof6 B31%
Equity Bank Sof 6 A3%
MCBA Bank S5of b B3%
Sidian Bank bofb 100%
I & M Bank dofb 67%
Citibarnk 5 of & A3
UBA Bank Aofb 67%
ABC Bank 5of 6 B3%
Family Bank 4of 6 6%
Ecobank Kenya Sof b 83%
Ciuardian Bank B of & 100
Victoria Commercial Bank Aol 6 67%
First Community Bank 5ol b 81%

The Lego! Affmirs Comimimee mer six fimes in 2027
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Home of Commities

Chairpersan

Vica Chalrpersan

OPERATIONS G TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Elizabeth Kimani - ABC Bank

Miring'u Ng'ang'a - Equily Bank
Fidedis Muia - Kenwa Bankers Association

This Committee of the KBA oversees Technical aspects of the Indusiry and has
three Sub Committess reporting to I

a. MNational Payments Systerms (NPS) Sub Committee

b.  Automated Clearing House (ACH) Sub Committee

€. Credit 5Sub Commitiee

Comimittes Achievements In 2027

ACH Upgrode 15020022

The committee approved the Upgrade of ACH to 15020022 standard
compliant by Sylbrin,

The decision was agreed upon by the committee after a holistic discussion on:
- Advantages of the IS0 standards

- Cost implications from current software

- HW clement - whether OPEX model or CAPEX or collecation

The file formats and the clearing sessions agreed upon by the Clearing House
Sub Committee were approved by the committes,

The committee through the KBA Secretariat held discussions with the Ministry
of Health 1o have front office staff members vaccinated against COVID-19 and
the MOH were very receptive to the idea and some Banks were able 1o hold
vaccinations in thesr premises,

Theough its Sub Committees, these are the major achievements in the year:

I There were 3 disaster recovery tests successiully on the ACH system in
the vear,

I, Workshops to deliberate on the migration of the ACH systems ta the 15O
20022 standard.

M. Cheque printers’ accreditation was performed, and Certificates were
awarded. Two security printers were identified to have control gaps and
granted interim accreditation during the review awaiting a review in
2021,

V. The Clearing Sub Commiltee performed an arbitration session in the third
quarter of 2021, This involved two cases which wese fully arbitrated and
closed. The low number of arbitration cases shows that the indusiry’s
elforts of frustrating fraud is bearing fruits. The chair of the Credit and
Islarmie Banking Advisory Sub Committee updated working with the legal
commitiee an the changes on Land Titles and digitization from a lender’s
PerspEctive.




ANMNUAL REPORT AND FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS 2021 _

Mame of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
DTB Bank Jofl 100 %
Equity Bank Jofd 100 %
Bank of Africa laof3 100%,
ABC Bank Jofl 100 %
NCBA Bank 1afld 100 %%
Standard Chartered Bank 3ol 3 100 %
Stanbic Bank 2all 66 %
| & M Bank 2ol b6 %
Co-Operative Bank 3of3 100 %
Equity Bank Jof3 100%:
Bank of Africa Iof3 100 %
AD Bank 1of3 331 %
Citibank Jofd 100 %

The Operarions & Technical Commities met three times in 2021,



Naome of Committes

Chalrperson
Vice Chobipersen

Soecretary

CLEARING HOUSE SUB COMMITTEE

Brian Koletil - Ciilibank N.A. Kemwya
Michael Mucheru - NCBA Bank
Sabina Man|i - Prime Bank Lid

The Autemated Clearing House Sub Committee, in collaboration with EBA
secretariat and The Central Bank of Kenya, had a very successful year coupled
with the enactment of major industry projects and smooth operations at the
Chearing House all year round. The Sub Committes succeeded in having
several sittings during the year. | extend my heanfelt appreciation fo the
members of this Suh Commintee for the exemplary service and commitment
towards the achievement of its goals for the vear.

Bub Committes Achlevemeanis in
2031

The ACH Suby Committes managed 1o achieve balow milestones.

IS0 20022 ACH File formats Project

The: Clearing howse Sub Committes is happy 1o repon that the 150 200322
project was approwved by the KBA Govening Council. The project aims at
upgrading the ACH file feemals to intermational stindards.
implementation is expected o be done in 2022,

Support to Member Banks - COVID-19 Measures

To ensure compliance to the COVID-19 directives isswed in 2020, the Sub
Committer revised the Clearing House file isansier cut-ofis for both the
presentments and refums sessions.

The revised timelines are sill in place and will be reviewsd by the Sob
Commillee in due course.

Security Printers Accreditation Reviews
In spite of the COVID-1% challenges in the Sub Committee suocessfully
performed physical security printer's accreditation réviews in Quarter 4, 2021,

Bank Disputes Arbitrations

The Sub Committee pedormed an arbitration session in Quarter 3, 2021, This
imvobved two cases which were fully arbitrated and closed.

The low number of arbitration cases shows that the industry’s efforts of
frustrating frauds is bearing fruits.

Disaster Recovery Tests

The Claaring House Sub Committee in collaboration with the Cloaring Houso
Inspector successiully conducted two Disaster Recovery Tests in the year
2021,

This wiks 1o ensure that the industry operations remain undisrupted in case of
any unforeseen distuptions on the production emdonment.

Sulb Cammittas Goals for 20232

- Implementation of 150 20022 ACH file iormats

- Hold at least one arbilration session per quarter in 2022

- Perdorm at least two ACH disaster recovery tests during the year

= Hold an Industry workshop in the 2* quarter of 2022

= Perform Securily printers’ accreditation review on a quarterly basis
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Hame of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
KCB Bank Gaf9 67 %
Standard Chartered Bank 9 of9 100%
Abisa Bank Bof9 89%
1 & M Bank 9of 9 100%:
Co-Operative Bank 90f9 100%
Citibank 9af9 100%
Stanbic Bank 7aof9 78%
ABC Bank 9of 9 100%
Equity Bank Bof9 B9%
Prime Bank 90f9 100%
Central Bank of Kenya 90f 9 100%
Gull African Bank Bol9 B9%
SAM Bank bl 9 67%
MNCBA Bank BofB B9%
DTB Kenya Tolg 78%
Kingdom Bank bof 9 67%

The Clepring Howse Sub Committes mer ning times in 2021
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Name of Committes

Cholrparson
Vice Chairpersan

Secrotary

"CREDIT AND ISLAMIC FINANCE ADVISORY SUB
COMMITTEE

Christine Mwai-Marandu - Absa Bank
Boniface Kioko - ABC Bank
D Samuel Tirongo - Kenya Bankers Association

Sub Cammittase Priorities

1.

T look into the constraints to credit provision arising from security
documentation and registration regime limitations.

To pravide a farum for member banks to discuss non-competitive

issues relating to the management of credit risk in the banking industry,
including manitoring developments in implementing the: credit
infoemation-sharing mechanism.

To continuously work towards entrenching credit pricing ranspanency as
underpinned by the Annual Percentage Rabe (AFR).

Champion training on the credit market deepening across the oycle -
from deal identification, closure, and management.

Sub Committas Achisvemants in
2021

The Sub Committes spearheaded and participated in the rollout of several
industry capacity building programs among them:

With the emergence of new financing arangemenis and insiruments,
mose so blended finance, the Sub Committee spearheaded an
industry-wide capacity building session on blended finance
facilitated by the African Development Bank (AfDB). The webinar
spotlighted blended finance instruments and examined selected

case studies of blended finance projects with financial institutions in
Africa at large and the East African region.

Stress testing and credit sconing capacity building sessions with
Maoody's Analytics focusing bath on the retail and corporate
segments, especially during periods of heightened uncertainty
occasioned by the COVID-19 pandemic and the requirements under
IFRS fior forwarnd-looking recognition of credif fosses,

Training on Moveable Assets Collateral Registry whose objective was
for Business Registration Services [BRS to provide an overview of
the registry and demonstrate how clients log in to register their assets
and how financiers utilize the platiorm o secure loan contracts.
Global Istamic Finance Outlook Webinar with the Moody's Analytics
with the focus being on the drivers and outlook of lslamic finance,
and mare importantly the role of Suluk in driving the Islamic
corporate and sovereign’s debit issuance as well as the developments
shaping Islamic asset management and takaful.

The Sub Commitiee supporied the KBA Centre for Research on Financial
Markets and Policy® on developing and refining the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprises Survey questionnaire. The Survey was sought to
bridge the information gap between MSMEs and financial institutions by
shedding light on the MSMEs ecosystem.
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Credit and Islamic Finance Advisory Sub Committee
Mame of Committea Comd.

3. Engaged with the Council of Governors (COG) to formulate a lending
framework for an Exchequer financing initiative that would support SME
businesses operating within the various Counties,

4. With the advent of the African Continental Free Tree Area (ACFTAJ,
the Sub Commitiee had engagements with MANSA, a centralizod
customer due diligence (CDD) digital repository bhosted and managed by
Afreximbank that provides a single source of primary data for conducting
customer due diligence checks on counterparties in Africa with a view
o fnerease and boost intra-African trade by enabling trading pariners
access intelligence and obitain due diligence information on trusted
counterparties across the region.

5. The Sub Committee collaborated with the Communications and Public
Affairs department of KBA, continued to monitor the revamping of the
Total Cost of Credit Calculator.

Sub Committee Goals for 2022 1, To continue spearheading the rollout of a series of capacity-building
training on implementing risk-based pricing framewarks.
7. Work towards entrenching risk-based credit pricing as supported by the
credit information sharing (C15) mechanism
3. Integrate aspects of Islamic Finance into the Sub Commitiee’s activities
following the decision of combining its activities with those of the Islamic
Finance Advisory Sub Commiltee.
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Hame of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
Alrsa Bank o 40fl4 100%
ABC Bank Sofd 100%
Bank of Baroda N 2ol d 50
Caritas Microfinance Bank - 2of4 50%
Co-Operative Bank 3of4 75%
D78 Kenya 2of4 50%
DIB Bank Kenya 2of4 50%
Eecobank 2aof4 50
Egjuity Bank dofd 100%
First Community Bank 1ofd 25%
Culi African Bank 4 of 4 100
| & M Bank Tidd 0%
KCB Bank o dofd 100%
Mational Bank Zoid 50%
MCBA Bank e  4ol4 1005
SBM Bank 2of4 50%
Sichian Bank dof4 100%
Stanhic Bank 3of4 5%
Standard Chartored Bank 3 of 4 75%
LBA Kenya Bank 2of4 50%

The Credit and islamic Finance Advisary Sub Comrmttee mer four times in 2021,
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Name of Committee NATIONAL PAYMENTS SUB COMMITTEE

Chairparson Michael Nangole - Co-Operative Bank

Vice Chaolrpersan Doreen Mulera - DIB Bank Kenya

Secretony Fidelis Muia - Kenya Bankers Association

Sub Cammittes Achievements In Currency centres

2o - Operation at the four currency centres have been stable and seamless,
{Meru, Makuru, Nyeri and Kisii)

- The Kisii Currency centre which has picked well, and it is adequately
serving all commercial banks in the Kisii region and its catchment areas.

Pesalink 2.0 project

- Upgrade and go live of Pesalink 2.0 switch were implemented in Oct
2027 to replace the Old switch that was operationalized in 2017.

« Pesalink 2.0 is based on 150 20022 messaging struciure with a more
robust tech stack that is in line with the CBK NPS strategy 2021-2025.

KEPPS Rules & regulations
The Sub Committee noted that the CBE is finalizing on the updating of
new KEPPS rules and regulations.

Sub Committes discussed the draft document with an ohjective of
submitting their recommendations in the workshop being planned by
CBK in 2022,

- Critical area of concern Aocus for the sub- committee are the clauses on:
* 5LA of 2 hours.

* Intevest payment'claims for defayed payment.
*  Dirspute resolution mechanism,

Mm#ﬁ-n
Waorking with both SWIFT user group and CBK NMG team, we have
developed a read map for the industry project.

= All member banks have undertaken training programs during the year, for
both operational and technical teams.

= Developing of Industry standards is ongoing for the messaging formats.
This action point covers both ACH and RTGS environments,

- Individual Banks have cammenced development of their Cross-Border
payment standarnds.

- ACH upgrade was divided into two: hardware and soltware.

= DR site has been upgraded successiully.

= Local Industry Go live tentative dates remains to be in November 2022
with all stakeholders including the CBK onboard.

Mmhg Industry Standards for Payment Recalls
Sub Commities discussed industry Standards for recall of Payments amnd
formed a task force to discuss and recommend ideal process of handling
recalled payments (Pesalink, RTGS SEFTs).
Scope included the following areas
» Recalls as a result of bank /customer errors
= Fraudulent Transactions.
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Mame of Committes

Hational Payments Sub Committes Contd.

= Addressing rate movernent for comverted FX transactions.
» Pesalink recalls due to wrong beneficiary (version 2.0 is meant o
significantly reduce this challenge

Switt CSP 2022

= Cystomer Security Program (C5F) 2022 Program,

- Target 100% compliance for this year's Swift CSP program.

- It was noted that only one advisory control has been upgraded 1o
mandatory under 2022 program.

IBAN

- Asmall taskforce was formed (o study and review the adoption of IBAN.

- Taskiorce reported and recommended that the IBAN project will be
focussed on in 2022,

Sub Commitias Goals lor 2012

Cash Centres
- Smooth and efficient operations of all the four Curmency centres,

Actively participate in the engoing initiative / discussions on Central
Bank Digital Currency.

CBE MPS strotegy 2022-2025
Collaborate and support implementation of CBK NPS Strategy 2022-
2025.

Pesalink Initiatives

- Pursue all members 1o upgrade to new Pesalink version 2.0

« Increase the meschand integrations.

- Maove direct debits to Pesalink

- industry Standards on Recalls (PesaLlink and RTGS)
Discussion on going on developing a guideline on process recalled
paymient

. Focus on the cashless initiative and ook for ways 1o reduce the use of
cash
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Hame of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
DTB Bank Jal§ 60%
Citibank 5ol 5 100
Bank of Africa Jof 5 fili%
Stanbic Bank 50f5 100%
NCBA Bank 40f5 B0%
Family Bank 4of 5 B0%
IPSL 40l 5 [
Ecabank 5of § 100
Co-Operative Bank 50f 5 100%
Standard Chartered Bank Jof§ 60%
DIB Bank Kenya ois 60%
Equity Bank Jofs 60
Mhsa Bank 5of 5 1005
KCB Bank 40f 5 B0

The hiaticral Payments Sub Committee met five times in 2021,



Vier Cholrperson

S=crotary

PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE

Catherine Njoroge - Stanbic Bank
Wambui Kaguongo - ABC Bank
Christine Onyango - Kenya Bankers Association

Cammities Achisvemenis in 2020

- The KBA Public Relations Committee sustained efforts bowards reinforcing

the banking indusiry’s visibility through initiatives designed to promabe
banking industry custamer experience and access to financial services for
Persons with Disability, The Committes also continued to support capacity
building initiatives, including the Inuka Enterprise Frogram.

Al the close of 2021, KBA's had achieved a cumulative audience reach

an both mainstream and social media of over 50 million, translating 1o

a collective Advertising Value of over K5h, 320 millicn with a Pulilic
Relations Valwe of over KSh, 1.8 billion,

Collaboeated with member banks 1o scale the Inuka Enterprise program,
reaching a more than 40,000 SMEs through online leaming and
engagement plainms.

Coordinated a successiul induction workshop for Human Resources
Managers and Communication Managers an the Persans with Disability
accessibility project. The iniflative aimed 1o highlight the scope of the
project and areas that need banks’ supgaort,

Continued 1o roll out the Sustainable Finance Initiative in efforts geared
towards building the capacity of bank staff to create long term value for the
economy, Under the initiative, over 3,000 bank stafl were trained in 2021,
Coordinated a successful Kaa Chonjo Card, Mobile, and Online banking
safety awareness campaign, In partnership with PesaLink, VISA, Retail
Association of Kenva, Kenya Saciety for the Blind, Association for the
Physically Disabled-Kenya, Association for Microfinance Institutions-Kemya
{AMFl-Kemya) and Comsumer Grassrools Associatian,

Coordinated a successful Customer Service Week along with the release of
the 2021 Banking Industry Customer Satlsfaction Survey, which atiracted
close to 30,000 regponses from the banking public.

Committee Goals for 20232

Publish the Persons with Disability consolidated roadmap.

Publish the Customer Satisfaction Survey 20232,

Advance KBA Lobbying and Advocacy initiatives through stakeholder
engagements.

Further scale the Inuka Enlarprise program in collaboration with memiser
banks,

Build member banks capacity to be responsive and adaptive to the needs
of Persons with Disability,
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Name of Bank Attendance Record Percentage
Bank of Africa 1of 3 3%
Bank of Baroda | 66
Caritas Microfinance Bank 1of3 33%
Comsolidated Bank 1of3 33%
Co-Operative Bank 2of3 B6%
Diamand Trust Bank 3pf3 100%
DIB Bank Kenya 20i3 B6%
Ecobank 3of3 100%
Equity Bank 2of3 66%
Gulf African Bank Jof3 100%
I & M Bank Jof3 100%
KCB Bank 203 66%
MCBA Bank 2of3 B6%
SBM Bank 1af3 33%
Sidian Bank 3af3 100%
Stanbic Bank 3of3 100%
Standard Chanered Bank 10f3 33%

The Pubiic Refonons Committee mer three times in 2027,
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL

The Governing Council submit their raport together with the audited financial statements of the Group and the Association
for the year ended 11 December 20217,

1. Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Group is to play an advocacy rale for the banking industry, managing operations of
an automated Clearing House, negotiating collective bargaining agreements an behalf of member banks with their
employee's recognised union, and pravision of an online platorm for real time clearing and settlement of payinents
between banks and payment solution companies.,

2. Review of Financial Results and Activities
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reparting
Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities, The accounting polickes have been applied consistently compared to the

prior pear.

3. Results for the Year
The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out on page 93.

4. Governing Council
The Governing Council members who held office during the year and up to the date of this report are listed on page 88,

5. Events After the Reporting Period
The Governing Council is not aware of any material event which occurred aftes the reporting date and up to the date of

this repost,

6. Shl:ueniniﬂhdumhﬂuﬂmq’:iudﬂnu
With respect to each member of the Governing Council on the day that this report Is approved:

= there is, so far as the Governing Council is aware, no relevant audit infarmation of which the association's auditors
are unaware; and

= the Governing Council has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken as a Council 1o be aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that informatian,

7. Terms of Appointment of the Auditors
BDO East Africa Kenya wene appointed on 30 November 2021 and have expressed their willingness to confinue in
oifice,

The Governing Council approve the annual avdit engagement contract which sets ot the terms of the auditor’s
appointment and the related fees. The agreed auditor’s remuneration of KSh, 1,200,000 has been charged to the
statement of income and expenditure in the year,

The financial staternents set out on pages 92 to 110, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the on 2™ Fabriaaey , 2022, and were signed on its behalf by:

ﬁ .fajl:f If":'l-nﬂ-—
Diase:

By arder of the Governing Council
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OTATEMENT OF GOVERNING COUNCIL'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Geovermning Councl 15 required to prepare financial sialements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at the end of the financial year and of its surplus or deficit for that year. The Governing
Council is also required o ensure that the Group maintains proper accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and
explain the transactions of the Group and disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Group.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Repoeting Standard for Small
sl Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supponed by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Governing Council accepl responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporing Standard jor Small and Mediumesized Entities. They also accepls

riesponsibility for;

- designing, implementing and maintaining such intermnal controls as they determine necessary o enalble the presentation
of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

- selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently, and
making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonalde in the circumsiances.

The Goveming Council is of the opinion, hased on the information and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasanabbe assurance that the financial records may be relied on fos the preparation of the
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial contral can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss

Having made an grsessment of the Group's ability o continue 45 & goimg concerm, the Governing Council is not aware of
any material uncertainties related 16 events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Group's ability o conlinue as 4 goang

CONCE.

The Governing Council ackniwledges that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve them of their
responsibilithes.

The external auditors are responsible for independently audsting and reporting on the Group's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the Group's axternal auditors and their report is presented on pages 91 10 92,

The financial statements set oul ﬂ;fﬁilﬂﬂ 93 1o 110, which have been prepared on the gaing concem basis, were approved
by the Governing Council on , 2022 and were signed on its behalf by

Ih'ﬂnhrdmeﬂnwmlngfmil p
Ehﬂiqm'n'r

Council Member
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the Members of Kenya Bankers Association

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kenya Bankers
Assoclation (the “Association”) and its subsidiary (together
the “Group” set aut on pages 93 to 110, which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021,
Statement of Income and Expenditure, Statement of Changes
in Members' Funds and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and the notes 10 the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinian, the financial staterments present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial pesition of Group as

at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
International Financial Reparting Standard for Small and
Muediumesized Entities.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our awdit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Association
in accordance with the Intermational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics

for Professional Accountants (including Imernational
Independence Standards) (Parts 1, 3 and 4A) (IESBA Code)
and other independence requirements applicabbe to
perfarming audits of Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements in Kenya, We have fulfilled our
other cthical respansibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits in Kenya. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Governing Council is responsible for the ather
information. The ather information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does ot cover the
other information and we do not express an audit opinicn

or any form of assurance conclusion therpon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or cur knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be maalerially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of the Governing Council
for the Financial Statements

The Governing Council is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Intemational Financial Reporting
Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities, and foe such
internal control as the Governing Council determine is
necestary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud of #rror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governing Council
is responsibie for assessing the Group's ability 1o continue
s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related 1o going concern and using the going concern basie
of accounting unless the Governing Council either intend

to liquidate the Grough or 1o cease operations, or have no
realistic aliemative but 1o do so,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
miaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
10 issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
4 guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with
Imevnational Standards on Auditing will abways detect a
material misstatemenl when it exisis. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or ermor and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
& the basis of these financial statements,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance wath International
Siandards on Auditing, we exercise projessional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We alsa

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor,
design and perform audit procedures responsive o these
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion, The rigk
of not detecting a material misstalement resulting from
fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud
may |nvolve collusian, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Ohtain an understanding of internal control rekevant o
the audit in order 10 design audil procedures that are
appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the puerpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Governing Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Governing
Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncenainty exists related to events or conditions
thal may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that
a malerial uncertainty exists, we are required 10 draw
attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, 1o modify our opinian, Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to C#ase 1o continue as 3 going
EONCETT.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whather the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presenlation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group 10 express an opinion on the

comsolidated financial stalements. We are responsible
e the direction; supendision and perdormance of the
group audit, We remain solely responsiblie for our audit
opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements

We repaort 1o you hased on our audit tar;

- we have oltained all the information and explanatiens
which 1o the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of the audit

- |n our opinion, proper books of account have been kept
by the Growp, so far as appears from examinalion of
Phcvses bacsnkis; andd

- the Group's Statement of Financial Position and
Statemend of Income and Expendilure are in agreement
with the books of aocount,

BOD Enst Africa Henya

Regulpiod by ICPAK, License Mumber; PRO0TS

The Wiestwoiod, 09 Floos

Wale Close, (i Ring Raad, Westlands, Mainabi, Kemyi

Signed on i ol B Earst Adrica Kenvpa by Clifford &h Chip
Partner responaihle foe the independont audit

Practicing cortifecate numbser- 1964

Mermberhin number: 9578

Date =0 = @b 2ol
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Group Association
201 _IULI'D 2021 2020
Mobe KSh KSh KSh KSh
Revenue 2 344 205 494 I67.BE1.734 ]l'ﬂ_..ME 336,757,094
Other incoma 3 77857992 43,530,304 77.533,0%6 42,467,843
Project related expenses {144,706,886)  (146,245,525)  (144.706,606) (146,245,525
Adminisiraine expenses 313,942 463) 333,116,034 (147,305,497} (145,430,764
Establishment O 27, 765,952) 133,244 810 {62 36T 5620 21,656,034}
Finance cosis 4 1,163,709 {6,276, 1500 b= =
Operating (deficit]‘surplus for the year 5 [(163,190,108)  (207470,481) 25,153,150 63910614
Tax income (expenie) [ (7239900 13,953,317 15,200 829 (3,059,587
(Daficit]  surplus for the year {163,914,098) (221.423,798) 19,950,327 62,813,027




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2021

G Associatian
FliFA] 2020 200 2020
[ 1 K5h Ksh K5h K5h
Assots ] -
MNon-Curnent Assets
Fropery and equipmaent T 3G7.AT0065 142,709 462 312,867,616 6,057,794
Intangihle assets 4 4 640,822 55,624,004 55960657 1614647
Imvesimmienis in subsidiary 9 —_ — 1,808, 580,000 T80, D, CHOD
Liman o subsbeliany 1 —_ —_ 51,869 459 1516440356
Dedisred tax ii 3,550,653 - - 1,561,574
Current tax recoverable — 1,368,261 — —
e——— 441,065,300 200762618 2179305754  1,726,674,371
Current Assats
Subscriptmn and other receivables 12 152,624,074 1104935209 144,988,999 86,999,679
Cash at bank and in hand 14 00877848 168979880 17819134 184,162,656
- 1SN = m9ATIAY IDINY 171,062,035
Total Assets 795,567,262 500,256,028  2,502,543,887  1,997,836,706
Funds and Liobilities
Membaers’ funds
Conmibution for investment in subsicdiary 1.890,000,002  |,740,000,002 1 890,000,002 1 240,000,003
Entrance fees and penaltios mesonaes 136,188,520 136,188,520 136,168,520 136,188,520
Capital fund 262,660,840 14,654,314 262,660,840 3054114
Revenue resene (1,690,566,56%) (1,526,652.471) 88,223,075 68,172,748
598,282,793 104,190,365  2,377,072,437  1,979,115,584
Liabilities
Maon-Current Lichilities
Dreferred tax 11 —_ 1,025,655 - -
Current Liabilities
Trade and oihey payables 15 106, 350,752 90,535, 646 124,546,777 18,721,122
Boerowings 16 = 74,504,362 = —
Current tax payable 933,717 — 974,673 —
197,284,469 115,040,008 125,471,450 872,022
Totol Liohilities 197,204 469 115,065,663 125,471,450 18,701,132
Total Fund and Liobilities 795,567,262 504,250,026  2,502.543,887  1,997,636,706

The financial statements and the notes on pages 93 1o 110, ware approved by
and wers i on its behalf by

hairman

the Governing Council on the 4% Fibraany 3032
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' FUNDS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Contribution  Entronce Feos
For nvesiment  ond Penalties Raweriug
in Subsidiary Ressrve  Copital Fund Reserve Total
KSh K&h KSh KSh KSh

GROUP
Balones ot 1 Januory 3020 1, 540,000,002 113,488,530 38320000 (1,282,520,677) 409,279,840
Dedicit for the yoar - - - (221,421,794 (220,433, 798)
Contributiong receiverd In the year D0H3.000, 000 — — — 200, 0O, 000
Tramsier i entrance lees and - 12,700,000 - {2,700, 00a) -
penaltics reserve
Additions in the year — — 285,000 — 285,000
Transder i other operating mcome —_ — (3,950, 684 — {1,950,646)
Balaree at 1 Jonuary 2021 1,740,000, 002 136, TBR, 520 34,654,314 (1,526,652,471) 384,190,365
Deeficit for the year — — — (Va3 914,058 (163,914, 04%48)
Contributions recetved in the year 150,000,000 —_ —_ _— 150,000, 000
Additions in the year —_ - 172.534,232 - 171,534,232
Transfer to other operating income —_ - (44,527, 706) — 44,527,706
Bolonce at 31 December 2020 1,890, (4, (i 136,158,520 262,660,840 (1,690,566, 569 598,282,793
ASSOCIATION
Balonce at 1 Jonuwary 201 ¥, 540,000,003 113,488,520 38,320,000 28,1597 1.719.9%8 743
Sumplus for the year — = — 62,813 027 62,813,027
Contributions recebved in the year 33, 000, 000 — —_ — 200,000,000
Transter o entrince fees and - 22,700,000 - (22, 700,000 —
penalties rescrvr
Additions in the year — & 285,000 — 285,000
Transfer to other operating income — —_ (3, %50, 66 — (3,950, 686)
Balance at 1 January 2021 1,740, (D, D2 136,188,520 34,654,714 6B 272 T48 1979115584
Sumplus fior the year - = - 19,550,327 19,950,327
Contributions received in the yoar 150,000,000 - = - 150,000, 000
Additions in the year —_ — 272,534,252 - 273,534,237
Transfer 1o other operating incomse — - {44,527 T06) - {44,527, 706)
Balance ot 31 December 2021 1. B90, 00, (02 136,188,520 262,660,840 88,223,075 177072437
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Group . BAssoghotion
221 i 2020 o 2o
A S e Sl T, D - S [ . .
Cash fMows from operating activities
Canh penersied from operations 17 243,637 612 19,229,876 356,398,700 1941, 599,026
Finanoe cosis 1,163,008 (s, 276, 1 500 —_ —
Tax paid 14 (1,998,318) 14,2048, 657) 11,716,582 (3,972,928
Net cash fram operating activities 242,803,003  B665069 154682121 190,626,094
Cash flews from investing activities
Purchase ol pooperty and duipment T 02,275,226) 455274210 (300,473,376 {14,828,821)
Sale of property and eouipmen| 70498 1,150,286 2F0.4%0 1,150, 26
Purchase of cher imangible assels B {53.395944) {8.537.055) (5383, 663 —
Memibers contribution o subsidiary 150,000,000 200,000,000 1 5000000 200,000,000
Net cash trom investing activities QUSAD0ET 14908510 (156SB6S4T 183,321,465

Cogh flows from financing activities
et mevvernent (0 subsidiary loan - - (204,009,102 381,067, 4200

Net repayment of tomowingt (24,504,363) __ (162,435, 160) - =
Net cash from financing activities (24,504,363} (162,435,160) (204,009,102)  (381,061,420)
Total cash movement for the year 12,897 968 (d, 684, 281) (5,913,522 2,113,857}
Cash at the beginning of the year 188 979, K80 183 664,161 184, 162 656 186,276,513

r@mmnﬂdm year 13 201,877,848 189,979,880 178,249,134 184,162,656
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kenya Bankers Association (the Association) is domiciled in Kenya where it is registored by Registrar of Trade Unions under

the Trade Liniors Ordinance 1952,

The principal activities of the Group Is to play an advocacy role for the banking industry, managing operations of an
automated Clearing House, negotiating collective bargaining agreemenis on behalf of member banks with their employes's
recognised union, and provision of an online platform for real time clearing and settlement of payments between banks ane

payment salution companies,

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized
Entities, The financial statements have been prepased on
the historical cost basis, and incomaorate the parincipl
accounting policies set out belaw, They are presented

in Kenyan Shillings (KSh). These accounting policies are
consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of
estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
financial statements requires management from time to
time to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reparted amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, These estimates
and associated assumptions are based on experience and
various other factors that are believed 1o be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual resulis may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting
estimates are recognised in the periad in which the
estimales are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying occounting palicias
The Governing Council did nat make critical judgements
in the application of accounting policies, apart from those
invalving estimations, which would significantly affect the
financial statements.

Key sources of estimotion uncertalmty

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Governing Council assesses the appropriateness

of the useful lives of property and equipment at the

end of each reporting period. The useful lives of mator
vehicles, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and
computer equipment are determined based on the Group's
replacement policies for the various assets, When the
estimated uselul life of an asset differs from previous
estimates, the change is applied prospectively in the
determination of the depreciation charge,

impalrment testing

The Group reviews and tests the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment, investment property on the cost
madel and intangible assets when events or changes in
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When such indicators exdst, management
determine the recoverable amount by performing value
in use and fair value calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it is
not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an
individual asset, management assesses the recoverable
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Accounting Policies (continued).

amount for the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

1.2 Consolidation

Basiz of conzolidotion

The Group’s financial statements incorporate the financial
staterments of the Association and that of s subsidiary.
Contral exists when the Association has the power 1o

govern the financial and operating policies of an enlity so 45
1o obtain beneiits from its activities.

The resulis of subsidiaries are ineluded in the consolidated
financial staterments from the effective date of acquisition
1o the effective date of disposal, All intragroup transactions,
balances, income and Expenses are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsicliaries are identified and recognised separately from
the Group's interest therein, and are recognised within
equity.

1.3 Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less any
accumulated impainment losses,

1.4 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets which the
Group holds for its own use or for rental to others and
which are expecied to be used for more than one period.

Property and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Cont Includes costs incurred initally to acquine oF construct
an item of property and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently 1o add 1o, replace pan of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an
item of property and equipment, the carrying amount of the
replaced part i derecognised.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services,
additions o or replacements of parts of propenty arul
equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future
economic benefits associatied with the expenditure will flow
1o the Group and the cost can be measured retiahly. Day to
day servicing costs are included in surplus or deficit in the
pesiad in which they are incurred.

Property and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment

losads,

Property and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, except for land which is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of an assel commences when the asset is
available for use as inlended by management. Depreciation
is charged 10 write off the asset’s Camying amount over Its
petimated wseful life to its estimated residual value, using

a method that best reflects the pattern in which the asset’s
economic benefits are consumed by the Group. The useful
lives of items of property and equipment have been assessed
as follows:

Ivem Rate %
Furnitures. and fittings 12.5
Maotor vehicles 25
Office equipment 12.5
IT equipment 33.33
Leasehold improvements 125

Vhen indicators are present that the useful lives and
residual values of items of property and equipment have
changed since: the most recent annual reporting date, they
are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for prospectively
as a change in accounting estimate.
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Accounting Policies (continued).

Impairment tests are perormed on property and eguipment
when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When
thi carrying amount of an item of property and equipment
is assessed o be higher than the estimated recoverable
amount, an impairment los is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit to bring the camying amount in line with
the recoverable amount.

An ilem of property and equipment is derecognised

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property
and equipment, determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the item, is included in surplus or deficit when the item is

drecognised.

1.5 Intangible assels

Intangihle assets are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment |osses.

Research and development costs are recognised as an
expense in the period incurred. Amaonisation is provided 1o
write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, as
follows:

Item Rate %

Computer soffware, other 20

The residual value, amortisation period and amortisation
methad for intangible assets are reassessed when there is an
indication that there is a change from the previous estimate.

1.6 Leases

Leases are classified a5 finance leases whenever the terms
af the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other

leases are classified as operating leases. Renlals payvable
unider operating leases are charged to profit ar koss on a
straighl-line basis ever the term of the relevant lease.

1.7 Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at cach reporting dabe whether there is
any indication that property and equipment or intangible
assets may be impaired,

If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of
any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated
and compared with its carrying amount, i the sstimated
recoverable amount is lower, the canying amoun is
reduced 1o its estimated recoverable amount, and an
impairment loss is recognised immediately In surplus or
dedicit.

I an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amaunt of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not
in axcess of the amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
group of assels} in prior years. A reversal of impairment is
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

1.8 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense In the period
im which they are incurred.

1.9 Tax

Currant tax assets and llabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the exent
umpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amoum
due for those perbods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
The tax liability reflects the effect of the possible outcomes
of a review by the tax authorities.



Accounting Policies (continued).

TR TS okl bkl s
A doferned tax liahility is recognised for all faxable
temporary differences.

£l THY &S

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
tempaorary differences 1o the extent that it is probable
that taxakbile surplus will be available against which the
deductible empaorary difference can be wiilised.

Deferred 1ax asset is recognised for the cary forward of
urused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable surplus will be available agains: which the unused
tax Iosses can he utilised,

Dieferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability s senled, based on 1ax rates jand
tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting periad.

[N e e Les

Tax expense i recognised in the same component of total
comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other
evenl that resubed in the lax expense,

1.10 Employee beneiits

Employes benefits - post employmant obligotions

The Association operates a defined contribution retirement
enefits plan for its employess, the assets of which are held
in a separate trustee administered scheme managed by a
segregated scheme. A defined contribution plan is a plan
under which the Association pays fixed contributions into a
separate fund, and has no legal or constructive abligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets o pay all emplayess the benedits relating to employee
service in the current or prior years. The Association's
coniributions are charged 10 the statement of Income and

expenditure in the year 1o which they melate.

The Association and the employees also coniribute to the
Mational Social Security Fund {NS5F), a national defined
contribution scheme. Contributions are determined by local
statute and the Asseclation's contributions are charged 1o
the staterent of income and expenditere in the year to
which they relate,

Empdoyes antitisments

The estimated monetary liability for employee’s accroed
annual beave entitlerment at the balance sheet date is
recopgnisved as an employment cost.

1.11 Revenue

Revenue from provision of services is recognised by
reference o the stage of completion of the transaction at
the end af the reporting period. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable, net of
discounts and sales-related taxes collected on behalf of the
Covernment of Kenyva.

Revenue comprises subscriptions received or recoivable
from members wha have subscribed 10 the services offered
by the Group. Subseription income is recognised on accrual
basis,

Other revenue recognition policies include:

a) Entrance fees are recognised when recelved as this is
the earliest point at which the Group's right to receive
the income it established,

hi  Enterest income is recognised on- accrual basis;

¢l Clearing house penalties are recognised when a
penalising event occurs in accordance with the rules:
and

d) Switch income is recognised on receipt.



ANMUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021 _

Accounting Policies (continued).

1.12 Foreign exchange

Foreign currency tronsactions

frchange differences arising on monetary items are
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which they
Arie.

All transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
in Kenya Shillings, using the spot rate at the: date of the
transaction. Forelgn cuffency manetary items al the
reporting date are transtated using the closing rate. All
exchange differences arising on settiement or ranslation are
recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.13 Cash centre capital grant
Cash centre capital grant are accounted for when capital

expenditure for the Cash Centre has been incurred,
Depreciation charged on the assets is charged to the
statement of income and expenditure and an equivalent
amount transferred from the funds to other operating
income.

1.14 Enirance fees and penallies reserve
Entrance fees is charged when a member joins the
Assaciation while penalties are charged when a member
breaches the set rules for the clearing house. This are
initlally recognised as income through statensent of
income and expenditure and later transferred 1o the reserve
aceount as they are not usually factored in the budgeted

expenditure.

These funds are get aside and can be utilised with the
autharisation of the Governing Council.

1.15 Contribution for investment in subsidiary
This represents a nan-refundable contribution by members’
towards the Assaciation’s investment in its subsidiary
company, Integrated Payment Services Limvited.

1.16 Financial assets

Subscriptions and ather receivables are initially recognised
at the transaction price. Subscription revenue is made on
the hasts of normal credit terms, and the receivahbles do
not hear interest. Where credit is extended beyond moemal
credit terms, receivables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period, the carmying amount
of subscription and other receivables are reviewed o
determine whether there is any objective evidence that the
amounts are not recoverable. If 50, an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the income and expenditure
statement

1.17 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the transaction
price (less transaction costs). Trade payables are obligations
an the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear Interest.
interest bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at
amontised cost using the effective interest method.

1.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and
dermand and term deposits, with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition, that are reaclily
convertible 10 known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.19 Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted o
conform with changes in presentation in the current year.



— EENYA BANKERS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. REVENUE

Group Association

2021 2020 20271 2020

== K5h Ksh KSh Kksh

Membership subscription fees 297,000,005 A22,257.094 297,000,008 322.257.094

Entrance feed — 14,170,825 — 0,000, 00

Associme mombers subseription 5, 000, (00 4,500,030 5,000,000 4,500,000
Swvilch income 42,21013,489 26,944 115 _— —_

344,203,494 367,881,734 302,000,005 336,757 004

d. OTHER INCOME

i an gale of asseis 177740 3,107 783 177740 1,101,783
Clearing house penatiies - 12,700, (6650 = 12,700,000
Inberest on fved deposii 13,400,434 12,549,400 11,095,534 11,506,939
Sponsorship 19,732,112 T, 480, 6457 19,732,112 10,480,687
Transier of capital fund 44,537, 704 1,950,686 Al 52T Tk 1950,686
Tratning income - 47,718 — 47,718
Ciher income - 00, 000 — 00, 000

77,857,992 43,530,304 77,5330 41487 843

4. FINANCE COSTS

Farcign exchange gain 12,269,659 - - -
Interess on bank loan 1,125,950 6,276,150 — —

(1,163, 709%) b, 176,150 o e

. [DEFICIT) SURPLUS BEFORE TAMATION

The following iterms have been recopnised as expenses in dhtermining the {deficitysurpius befon taeation:

Employee beneiits expense 200 601,617 188,981,925 125,591,804 125,593,878
Depreciation of property and eculprent 77,243 648 34,883,855 54,547,024 15,471,070
Amortisation of intangible ascels 39,377,018 84,786, 690 1,029,653 B21. 643
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
{continued).
Group Assaciation
. N s st St oy 2001 2020 2021 2020
KSh K5h KS5h K5h
Erngeloyes: herwfils expense conaists ol
W‘*ﬁﬂhﬂnmﬂllhﬁ.ﬂfﬂ 193,307 813 181,872,212 120,474,827 120871854
Hetirement benafit costs:
- Defined coniribution scheme 8,198,804 7.021,493 5075577 4,682 324
- National Social Security Fund 95 B8, 200 41,400 37 8D0
20,601,817 188,981,925 125,591,804 125,593,876
The average number of pereans employed during the year, by category, wen:
Humbar [N bsar Humibser MHurmber
Managerment and adminisiration I8 1@ 16 16
Major components of the tax expense
Current taxathen
Leal pormal o - year 5,300,294 4,099,030 5,202,829 3.BI8415
Prior yead cver provishon - (578, 762) — 738, 828)
5,300,298 3,520,268 5,202,829 3,099,587
Deferred taxation {008, 808} 10,433,049 —_ =
Dederred tax 1,462,500 -— — .
Price yoar over provision 14,576,308 110,433,049 — —
T131.9%0 13,953, 317 5,201,819 3,093,587
Reconciliation of the tax exponce
- Acoounting surplus or ideficit (163,190, 1048) (207 470, 481) 25,153,156 65,912,614
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 309 (2020; 25%) (48,957 032 (51,867 6200 7545947 16,478,154
Tax effect of:
Change in tax rase — 8,523,614 - -
Prior year over provisesns in current bax - 160,066 = —
Deferred tax not recognised 47,307,134 69,736,825 - -
Prior pefiod sdjustmernts 1,462 S - — -
Expenses non-deductible for fax purposes 4,528,673 1,933,015 1,274,168 1,154,016
Exermpl (inconme) / expenditur 3,617 285} (14,533, 583) 3,617,286 (14,532,583}
713,990 13,953,317 5,202,629 3,099 587




_ KENYA BAMEERE ASSOCIATION

MNotes to the Financial Statements

{conlinued).

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

0 020
Accumulated Carryify, Accurmulated Carrying
GROUP Cost _depreciation vakue Cost depeeciation value
Furniture and fatings 77T 5E7 (27147 603 10,586,894 37,653,387 (25,536,145} 124,117,242
Motor vehicles 24,807,741 (13,790.5600 107, e 24,807, 741 9645351} B5. 162,349
Oifice equipmen B1,768,739  (b4.673188] 17095351 BOZE9.071 (606522391 19416832
IT equipment IM95.902 (1544095030 66,510,395 P 35060  1132696,3360  B1LA38,715
Lassehold imgsrovesments 156,221,685 (93, 560,605) 262 6&0,840 R1LEA7 411 (490930000 14,654,314
Total TIASLANY (353,581,749 367,870,865 S20,552,673 (277,762 14L7E9A62
ASSOCIATION
Furniture and fittings 16,524,196 (15,387,219 1,136,957 V6442996 (15,106,136 1,336,860
dtioeor vehicles 17,780,091 18,986, 501) 8,793,590 17,760,091 {5,382, 331] 12,197,560
Office equipment 77,269,487 (62,858,953 14,410,528 FSUESA1Y (59,749,966)  1R.519,847
IT egpuipmend 11,096,859 P, 146) 25,885,713 7.1, 868 {5, 764,655] 1,349,213
Leasehaold improvemants 356,227,645 (93,560,805 263,660,840 BIEE7 4T3 (49,033,099 34654374
Taeal 500,B92,272  (188,004,634) 312,887,638 200,754,181 (134,736,387} 66,057, 7H4
Reconcillation of property and equipment - Group - 2021
Opening Closing
alance Adedribons Disposals Write offs  Depeecialion halance
Furniture and fittings 12,117,242 B1.200 - 19534 (LEILDAZ) 10,586 894
Moot vehiches 15,162,349 -~ - - (E E N R 4 i
Olfice equipment 19416832 1,503,418 — I6F.BA] (18525621 17095551
1T equipmend 1,438,725 28,156,376 {92, 758) 4814 122.947,1300 6,510,399
Leasehold improverments 34,654,304 271,534,132 — — (44,527 706 262 660,540
Towal 142,709,462  M2.I75.226 (92, 7T3H) 142,583 (77 2436480 367 AT0.BG6S
Reconciliotion of property and equipment = Group = 2020
Dipening Write ofis Closing
halance  Additions  Digposale  Transfes  Reclassification  Deprociathon halance
Furniture anc ftings 19,017,950 — - - 4,729,946) ATRIM) 117242
Minine vehicles BAUGIN2 136154881 - - - 60952 8040 15,162,349
CHfce equapmend b,513,357 1,204,829 _— -_ 14,100,781 (2,402,135 19416832
IT etpuipmioni SH527.274 AnARL TN t52,.255) 247 450 18,293,006 (19407 4490 61 434,725
Leasehold imprivements.  I8320000 285000 = = 3,950,686) 34654314
Total 130,877,872 455ITA {52,235) 241,450 1,077,819 (34,883, 855) 142,789 462
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Motes to the Financial Statements
(continued),

1 Property and equipment confinued

Reconciliotion of property and squipment - Group - 2001

Cipening Clesing

halance Adiditions Disposals Write offs  Depreciation balance
Furniture and fittings 1,336,860 81,200 - - [281,093) 1,136,967
dlotor vefiicles 12,197,560 — - - {3,403, 970) B,791,590
Office equipenent 16,519,847 1,503,418 - 37500 (LGD8,987) 14,410,528
IT equipment 1349213 27,354,536 (92,758 - (2,725268) 25685713
Leasshodd impHTEsmEns 34,654,314 272,534,232 — — [l 527 FOGN 1A, 660,840
Total 66,057,794 301,473,376 {92,758) (3.7500 (54,547,004)  312.BAT,638

Reconciliation of property and equipment - Group - 2020

Opening Write offs Claosing

balance  Additions  Disposals  Transfers  Reclassification  Degreciation halance
Furnisure and fittings 5,795,881 — — - (3,941,0100 B1BO11) 1,336,860
Mator vehicles 4,546,229 13,615,881 - - - (5.964,5500 12,197,560
Office equipment 4,957,468 402,500 - - 1339845 (,151,966) 16,519,847
T sqpuipment 11,004,441 535,440 {52,255 243 450 303, 006) (2 867857 1349213
Leasehold improvements 38,320,000 285000  — - - (3.950,686) 34654314
Total 65,434,019 14,828,821  (52,155] 242450 1077829  (15473,000) 66,057,794

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

200 2020

Accumulaed Carnmying Accumalated Carrylng
GROUP Cosl  depreciation value Cow  depeeciation vl
Intangiblbe asset 430,639,651 (360,995,829) 69,643,822 IFTLTOT (AG1881T) 55,624,894
ASSOCIATION
Intargihle aseets 27 081,513 (21,112,856) 5968657 647850  (20,083.203) 1,614,647
Reconciliotion of intangible assets - Group - 2021

Opening halance Additions Amortisation  Clesing balance
Intangible assets 55,624,594 51,395,944 (393770161 69,643 822

Reconciliation of intongible assets - Group - 2020
Opening balance Addbihibons Trasdiens Aumirtisalban Closing halance

= e e e T

Intangibde assets 136,116,979 8,537 055 (242 4501 (0, TG, G50 55,624,894

—




Notes to the Financial Statements
{continued),

B. Intangible ossets contnued

Reconciliation of intangible assots - Group - 2031

Group Associotion

2021 2020 1031 2020

KSh KSh K5h K5h

Opaning Closing

balance Additions Amorisation Isalance

Intangible asssts 1,614,647 5,383,663 {1,029,653) 5,904,657
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group = 2020

Opening Chosing

halance Transhers ArreOetisation halance

Intargible asses 2,678,740 (242 4504 (821,643 1,674,647

9. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY

Carrying Carryirg

l-lnldi-ns asmouni armdand

Inbegrated Fayment Services Limised 100 % 1, B0, 580,000 Hll,ﬂ!luE

Diuring the year under review, immestment inthe subsidiary (5L was increased by KSh, 1,668, 580,000 which was as @ result of IPSL
converting the shareholder’s foan bo share capstal.

10.  LOAN TO SUBSIDIARY

Subsldiary
Integrated Paymen! Services Limdled —_ — 51,869,455 1,516,440,356
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Motes to the Financial Statements
{continued).

11. DEFERRED TAX

Group Aszociation
2031 2020 ey 2020
The major components of the dedered tax halance are as fnflows: KSh KSh KSh KSh
Deferrod tax asset
Propesty and equipment 1,254,854 (416,791 — -
litangitile assets 2,186,476 (2,231,391} - -
Linrealised oxchange gain (1734, 2106) — —_ -
Prowision Tor impainment of receivables — 1.462,500 - =
Prowision for leave pay 03,51 150027 == =
Tax losses caried forwand _SU2.657,242 455,350,108 = =
506,207 695 454,324,453 — -
Deferred tax not recognised (302,657,243} (455,350,108 - —
Total daferred tax asset 550,683 (1,025,655) - -
Reconciliotion of deferred tax asset/(Hobllity)
Al beginning of yaar i1,025 655 9,407,794 — —
Recognised in surplus or deficit;
Change in fax rate — 20,146,418 == =
Propery and exuipment 1,711,645 (3,045, 4821 - e
Intangible assets 4,407 867 L7 4179370 — =
Prowision fior impairment of receivablies (1,462, 500 811,250 - =
Prowision for leave pay 53,504 (57 208E — -_—
Unrealised exchange gain (134,208 - - -
Bt end of year - 1.550,653 (1,025,655) - _ =L
The dhefered Lk asiel has nol been recognised on Gy besses carried fomsard amsnting o KSh. 1,675,524, 141 (2020
K3, 151703365820 chue o hack of certainty of avilabifity of e aible profits against which tas losses could be wlilised,
12. SUBSCRIPTION AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Frepayments 10,353,124 7,472 669 2,739,467 1,760,238
Diepinsits 1,086,911 1,006,918 1,065, 300 1,065,500
Advance paymen in EABX PLC 13,H00 00 - 13,801,000 =
Subscription and other receivalles 127 3850002 106,808,942 137 383,002 N4 T7F1940
Lase: Provision for impairment — (4, B75,000) — _ cam
152,624,074 110,493,529 144,985,999 W6, 99,674
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(continued).

13. TAX PAID

Group Association

2021 2020 2027 D

KSh KSh KSh K5h

Batance at beginning of the vear 2,368,263 1,599,873 2,561,574 1,688,231
Current tax for the year recogrised in surpluiideficii (5,300,298) 3,520,268  (5.202,8291 (3,099,587
Balanca at end of the year 933,717 {2,3648,263) 024,673 {1,561,574)

(1,998,318  (4,288,658) (1716581 (3,972,930

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash squivalents consist of:
Cash an hand 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,0HK
Bank balances 201,837,848 IBA939,880  I7A206.134 184,122,656

87T 848 1BE979, 880 178,249,134 184,162,656

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payahiles 108,451,539 Th2ILM5 3973570 B,111,786
Accrued exponses 15,629 (M2 13,309,245 12,536,875 9,615,950
Currency cenire payables 72270071 493,386 FI2T0071 993,386

196,350,752 90,535 646 124,546,777 18,721,122

The: Kenya Bankers Association Currency Centre project s a joint project between the Association and the Central Bark of Kenya gearcd
towards & better management of cash in circulaion within the respective regeon by the esiblishment of Cumency Centres Under this modol,
the Association invests through a member bank in the leaschold improvements, equipment and sorvices. The Assocuation reimserses the
hasting bank by sharing this investment cost with all banks that operate in the region.

The Central Bank of Kenya provides the cash 1o b deposited in the Curency Centre, 5 well az management and opesalkons sialf o nperate
thir ciemnares,

Currency centre poyable balance hos been arrived ot as follows;

Members' subscription 234702379 43,745,919 224702379 43,745,919
Currency centre operating expenses 71,5 7393 S72550)  (44.739,305)
72,270,171) (993,306) 72,270,171} (393, 386)
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Motes to the Financial Statements
{continued).

16. BORROWINGS

Group Associotion
2021 2000 2021 2020
Bank |oan A 24,504 15632 — -
The bank loan is secured by:
- A debenture charge of KSh, 560,000,000 over the entire present and future assets of the company.
- Guarantee by Kenya Bankers Association on behalf of its members.
Interest is payable on the bank loan at Central Bank of Kenya reference rate plus 4%.
17. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
{Desticin} mph_uhefnm taxation (163,190,108} (207, 470,481) 25,153,156 65,912,614
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 116,620,666 125,670,545 55,576,677 16,294,713
Gialn on sale of asets {177,740} {3,100, 783) (1rrral 300,783
Finance oo (1,163,709) 6,276,150 — —
Movement i capital fund 228,006,526 {3,665, 6EE 128,006,526  (3,665.680)
Agipts writien aff {142,583) [1,077.827) 3,750 (1,077,827
Frior year tax over statement - (1.827.3321 = (1,827,332}
Other non-cash item:
Comersion of subsidiary loan o investment —_ — (1., 580,000} _
Other movement in subsidiary loan — —_ 1,668, 5850, 00 —_
Chaonges in warking copltak
Subsscription and other receivables {42, 130,545) 176, 640,049 {57.9893200 127.821.656
Trade and othes payables 105,815,105 (10,213,759 105,825,654 15,757 3691
Th3,837612 18,229,876 354,390,708 194,599,024
Relationships
Subsidiary Integrated Payment Senvdoes Limited {IPSL)
Related party bolonces ond transactions with related parties
Related party baolonces
Amount due from related parry (PSLI - - 51,869,459  1,516,240,356
Rulated party transoctions
Amount advanced to related party (IPSL) dusing the year — - 204,009,102 381,061,420




SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EMPENDITURE

for the year ended 31 December 2021 Sroup R
i 2020 202 20
K5 KS5h K&h E5h

1. PROJECT RELATED EXPEMSES
Clearing house ranning expenses 6,119,321 67, 207 810 4, 119,33 57,207,810
Pulslic relations smd media sclivilios 55,504 013 34,059,206 35,904,933 14,1592 0
Credit referenee burcau project cost 19,126,412 19126413 19126413 19,176,413
Lizgal fipes 1177052 i, 41 906, 1,177,052 o, 495, 1541
Research #, 784,548 T AR 8,784,548 7061819
Adhvacacy . —— 6,594,619 12473097 5594619 13,173,297

, _1TORB86 146,245,525 144,706,886 146,245,525
2. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employment:

Salaries andl woges 193,307,813 181,672,212 120474827 100871 654
Pesision scherme contribuations 4,191,804 7,020,403 5.075.577 A2, 224
Matieatial Social Security Fuanel 5,000 AR, 2y 4| b0 17,800
Staif modical 1,7L317 8.4, 199 4,304,813 3,806,871
Leaver pary prowision charge 1832458 01,80, | 20 1654611 1026, 4737
Sl weblane Coste _RGHAI0F 0 LM IEY L2 b6 1§54, 200
Total employment costs S . NTM4197  196280,164 132,762,066 131,383,446
Cther odministration expenses:

Arlveriving 34,944 54,705, 440 - —
Auuclie remunerstaon

= Cairsel yanal 1. 204,000 1,172 M0 b5, 000 CETTET]
- Priow year unher preosciison 52,044 129,638 Fiq07 119,957
ol cebies i, 237,353 E 375,000 — —_
Bank charges IhZ, 484 111,404 126,434 145 8k
B allowances 5.1 MLARD 2 20000 - -
Cenmamiter expenses 507, k84 284,40 406,724 24,430
Corsailling arel proisssiomal fees HATHRIIE T, B0, W 1TS54 na 114
[t contre costs B.237. 760 9,701,515 - —_—
Fimes and penallivs 1,005,245 h56,511 — —
Casieral espeendes 4, 510,065 4,273,412 3902 816 4,084,871
Motor vehicle expenws 3, bht, 00 ma 74 258,715 1,736,209
Printing and staticinery 741,939 539,644 B51.44% 521,840
Recruitrmnt {ees 3,502,150 3,105,200 — —
Bedlwinte: expense 16,838,252 3R, 7T - -
Siibrripiions G467, 131 4,203,090 3. 740,653 LaF. 210
Pristigie 4,740, 4,413, 6m2 AT 243, B0
Tranvel arl cnfestainment 14955 880 2.004,913 1370150 2,573,827
WAT expense — G, BT, S — -
Totol other odminiatration expanses i, 658, 20 154,835 870 14,542,631 T4047, 310
Total administrotive expenses 313,942 465 PN 6004 147,305,497 145410764

3. ESTABLISHMENT EXPEMSES

Kt aul rafes .70, 4880 B 5086270 5, 164,100 4,998, TR
Imurnoe expense L6aE 194 1,507,570 I 62637 1,058
Rupairs ani| maintenange BIG, 195 478,240 459, 97H 11,504
Assiet wrile off 1142 5835 (1,077, 829 1,750 1077829
Amortisalion of intangible asets 39.377.018 B, 78, 6 1,024,653 521,643
Depreciation of propesy and equigmimt TN RAN B HBIMSS 54547004 15,473,070

127,765,950 1B3244.810 62367562 21,656,034



